Public Document Pack

Cabinet
Wednesday, 15th September, 2021, 6.00 pm
Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, Leyland, PR25 1DH
Information for members and the public
All members of the Cabinet must attend in person.
The proceedings will be available to view via YouTube livestream here.
Members of the public are entitled to speak and submit written representations at the
meeting with a written response provided. To make representations on any of the
items below, please email democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk
for the attention of Clare Gornall no later than 12pm on Monday, 13 September
2021.

Agenda
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are requested to indicate at this stage in the
proceedings any items on the agenda in which they intend to
declare an interest. Members are reminded that if the interest
is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the
Members’ Code of Conduct) they must leave the room for the
whole of that item. If the interest is not a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest, but is such that a member of the public
could reasonably regard it as being so significant that it is
likely that it would prejudice their judgment of the public
interest (as explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may
make representations, but then must leave the meeting for
the remainder of the item.

3

Minutes of the Last Meeting

(Pages 5 - 14)

Minutes of the last meeting held on 14 July 2021 attached to
be approved and signed as a correct record.
4

Cabinet Forward Plan / Notice of Executive Decisions
The latest version of the Notice of Executive Decisions 1
September 2021 – 31 August 2022 has been published on
the Council’s website.

ITEMS OF THE LEADER AND CABINET MEMBER (STRATEGY
AND REFORM)
5

Shared Consultation Framework

Meeting contact Clare Gornall or email clare.gornall@southribble.gov.uk

(Pages 15 - 32)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed.
6

Quarter 1 Performance Monitoring Report 2021-22

(Pages 33 - 48)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed.
7

Workplace Strategy

(Pages 49 - 76)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed.
ITEMS OF THE CABINET MEMBER (FINANCE, PROPERTY
AND ASSETS)
8

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Report 1

(Pages 77 - 110)

Report of the Director of Finance enclosed.
9

Land Transfer at Vernon Carus

(Pages 111 - 158)

Report of the Director of Commercial enclosed.

10

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider the exclusion of
following items of business on
likely disclosure of exempt
Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1
Government Act 1972.

the press and public for the
the ground that it involves the
information as defined in
of Schedule 12A to the Local

By virtue of paragraph 1: Information relating to any individual.
By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding that information)
Condition:
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered underThe Companies Act 1985
The Friendly Societies Act 1974
The Friendly Societies Act 1992
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any
building society, within the meaning of the Act)
The Charities Act 1993
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

ITEMS OF THE LEADER AND CABINET MEMBER (STRATEGY
AND REFORM)
11

Museum, culture and tourism team review

(Pages 159 - 184)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed.
ITEMS OF THE CABINET MEMBER (FINANCE, PROPERTY
AND ASSETS)
12

Award of contract for work on South Ribble Tennis
Centre car park

(Pages 185 - 188)

Report of the Director of Commercial enclosed.

Gary Hall
Chief Executive
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Cabinet Councillors Paul Foster (Chair),
Michael Titherington
(Vice-Chair),
Aniela Bylinski Gelder,
Bill Evans
and
Matthew Tomlinson
The minutes of this
www.southribble.gov.uk

meeting

will

be

available

on

the

internet

at

Forthcoming Meetings
6.00 pm Wednesday, 13 October 2021 - Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock,
Leyland, PR25 1DH

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Minutes of

Cabinet

Meeting date

Wednesday, 14 July 2021

Members present::

Councillors Paul Foster (Chair), Michael Titherington (ViceChair), Aniela Bylinski Gelder, Bill Evans and
Matthew Tomlinson

Officers:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Moister (Director of
Governance), Louise Mattinson (Director of Finance and
Section 151 Officer), Jennifer Mullin (Shared Director of
Communities), Rachel Salter (Service Lead (Development and
Business)), Howard Anthony (South Ribble Partnership
Manager), Darren Cranshaw (Shared Services Lead Democratic, Scrutiny & Electoral Services) and Clare Gornall
(Democratic and Member Services Officer)

Other members and
officers:

Councillors Hancock, Michael Green, Bretherton, Ogilvie, Mort,
Martin, P Smith, Mrs Smith, Sharples, Walton, Watkinson and
Wooldridge

Public:

0

17

Apologies for Absence
There were none.

18

Declarations of Interest
There were none.

19

Minutes of the Last Meeting
The minutes of 16 June 2021 were presented for approval.
Councillor Ogilvie referred to Minute 11 - Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring
20-21 Outturn. He enquired as to whether the Leader had written to the residents of
Buckshaw Village explaining the reasons for the decision concerning S106 funding
and also if the developer had been written to. The Leader indicated that he would be
contacting residents of Buckshaw Village in the form of a newsletter which would be
sent out in the next 2-3 weeks. The Chief Executive confirmed that a letter had been
sent to the developer but no response as yet had been received.
RESOLVED:That the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 16 June 2021 be approved and
signed as a correct record.

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
2

20

Cabinet Forward Plan (Notice of Executive Decisions)
The Cabinet Forward Plan (Notice of Executive Decisions) for the period 1 July 2021
– 30 June 2022 was presented for information. Members noted the “Council Housing
Delivery Programme” scheduled to be brought before Cabinet in September 2021.
Decision made
That the Cabinet Forward Plan (Notice of Executive Decisions) for the period
1 July 2021 – 30 June 2022 be noted.
Reasons for Decision
The Plan was presented for information only.

21

Award of Contract(s) to progress Town Deal Projects - Design Services
Decision made
The Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member (Strategy and Reform) presented a
report of the Director of Planning and Development informing and updating members
on the detail and outcome from the Town Deal Design Team procurement process.
The report requested approval to appoint and award contracts to the winning bidders
on the design team disciplines listed below to progress the design development on
the Leyland Town Deal project to RIBA Stage 3:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Services
Architect Services
Structural and Drainage Services
Landscape Architect and Public Realm Design Services.

A question was asked about the apparently large variances in scoring in the Design
Disciplines, for example in Landscape and Public Realm Design Services one
bidder’s score on cost was 10.38. The Leader indicated that the largest variance in
scores was on price, which had a weighting of 60% and therefore the cheapest bid
scored the full 60%. The scores on quality were much closer, however the cheapest
bidders mostly achieved the highest score in that regard too.
He also indicated that the actual figures received from bidders who were not
successful in the process were not disclosed in the report in order that the matter
could be considered in public.
Decision made
That the award of contracts to the winning bidders across the various design
specialisms in order to progress the design works on the Leyland Town Deal project,
be approved as follows:Design discipline – Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Services:Steven A Hunt & Associates Ltd - £91,975.00

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
3

Design discipline –Structural & Drainage:Woolgar Hunter Ltd - £134,772.00
Design discipline – Architect:Wilson Mason LLP - £139,256.25
Design discipline – Landscape & Public Realm Services:Lanpro Services Ltd - £39,250.00.

Reasons for decision
The work on the Leyland Town Deal project is extremely urgent and progressing the
design works will enable the project to progress in line with the delivery programme
mitigating any risk to funding and supporting the business case development
process.
Progressing the design works to RIBA Stage 3 will ensure that the project is able to
demonstrate a ‘shovel ready’ proposal to the funding body and allow the project to
proceed with the submission of a planning application process.
Alternative options considered and rejected
Alternative options considered include delaying the recruitment of the design
disciplines and not progressing the design works until the conclusion of the business
case development process which is currently set for March 2022.
This was rejected as this would put the project under significant pressure to deliver
on both the design and development of a number of capital projects as detailed
within the Town Centre Investment Plan in a short timeframe.
The delivery programme timescales have been dictated by central government and
in order to mitigate any risk to meeting programme timescales, it was necessary to
progress the design works in line with the business case development process.

22

Climate Emergency Strategy Review
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) presented a report
of the Director of Communities updating members on the work undertaken on this
hugely important issue and seeking approval to a revised Climate Emergency
Strategy and updated Carbon footprint for the Council operations and the Borough.
A question was asked about whether the “One Carbon World” report had yet to be
received and with regard to the accuracy of the data, given the accuracies in
2018/19. Councillor Titherington indicated that the report had yet to be received and
he would expect that any data produced by consultants would be accurate. Neil
Martin, Senior Environmental Health Officer clarified that council officers would now

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 7

Agenda Item 3
4

be calculating the figures and therefore ensure the figures presented will be
accurate.

Decision made
1. That members note the work undertaken by the cross-party Climate
Emergency Task Group;
2. That members note the current carbon footprint of both the Council and the
borough; and
3. That Council be recommended to approve and adopt the revised Climate
Emergency Strategy.
Reasons for decision
In July 2019 the Council declared that the effect of climate change within the
borough poses an immediate danger to the Health and Wellbeing of our residents.
To combat this threat the Council set a goal of rendering the borough carbon neutral
by the year 2030.
A cross-party Climate Emergency Task Group was formed to work with officers to
achieve this goal. The Task Group have met regularly to move this agenda forward.
In July 2020 members approved and adopted a Climate Emergency Strategy. The
Strategy provided background to the Climate Emergency issue, our
current position in terms of the Council and the borough and identified categories of
areas to concentrate on to achieve the overall goal of net-carbon neutral by 2030.
Members were also given a commitment by the Task Group that the Strategy would
be reviewed and revised each year, including an update on the current carbon
footprint and work undertaken.
Alternative options considered and rejected
None, because a commitment was given by the Task Group and accepted by Full
Council that the Strategy would be reviewed, and an update given.
23

Climate Emergency Action Plan
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) presented a report
of the Director of Communities providing details of a draft Climate Emergency Action
Plan, setting out the initial actions that the Council will undertake towards achieving
the corporate goal of net-carbon neutral by 2030.
A question was asked about whether the Cabinet were in discussions with
Lancashire County Council (LCC) as a crucial partner on many of the proposed
actions, and also quantifying the data in respect of how the actions will reduce the
700,000 kilotonnes of carbon. The Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) indicated
that regular talks were being held with LCC and that although no quantifiable data in
respect of the actions was yet available, the Plan represented the commitment of the
Council to addressing the climate emergency and establishes the actions which

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
5

inform the Strategy. The Chief Executive also indicated that similar points were
made at Scrutiny Committee and that detailed work on the Plan would now be taken
forward.
Decision made
1. That, having considered the report, the draft Climate Emergency Action Plan
be endorsed by the Cabinet.
2. That Council be recommended to formally adopt the draft Climate Emergency
Action Plan.
Reasons for decision
In July 2019 the Council declared a Climate Emergency, with a goal of achieving net
carbon neutral by 2030 for the Council operations and the borough.
In July 2020 the Council approved and adopted a Climate Emergency Strategy
which identified the current carbon footprint for the Council operations and the
borough and determined that a Climate Emergency Action Plan was required to
achieve the net carbon neutral goal.
The draft Climate Emergency Action Plan is a cumulation of work that fulfils the
above requirement and sets out the initial measures to move South Ribble towards a
net carbon neutral status.

Alternative options considered and rejected
The option of not developing an action plan was discounted.
Members had made a commitment to developing an action plan and achieving the
target of net zero carbon emissions by 2030. The Climate Emergency Strategy sets
out the scope of what is and is not to be included within the calculation of the carbon
footprint for both the Council and the borough as a whole. This scope has directed
the formation of the action plan.
.

24

Approval of Decarbonisation Plans for Civic Centre, Moss Side and
Leisure Centres
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) presented a report
of the Director of Communities advising members, through the commissioned
Decarbonisation Plans, on the level of, and potential cost of, work required to the
main Council owned buildings in order to achieve the Council’s goal of net carbon
neutral by 2030.
In relation specifically to the Civic Centre decarbonisation plan, the report requested
approval to the document so that it may be submitted to Salix Finance on behalf of
the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) as a condition
on the recent grant funding of £145,004 awarded to make energy efficiency
improvements to the Civic Centre.

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 9

Agenda Item 3
6

The report also requested approval to the other five Decarbonisation Plans to so that
they can be utilised in future grant bids through the Public Sector Decarbonisation
Scheme or equivalent when they become available.
A question was asked whether any companies other than Leisure Energy were
considered. It was reported that approximately 8 companies were approached and 5
responded. The Chief Executive confirmed that the requisite number of quotes were
obtained in accordance with financial regulations.
A question was asked as to how the of £4.138 million referenced in paragraph 34
would be financed. The Cabinet Member (Finance, Property and Assets) indicated
that hopefully Government funding could be obtained to contribute to this figure.
Decision made
1. That the decarbonisation plans attached to the report be noted.
2. That the decarbonisation plans be approved, allowing their submission as part
of current and future grant applications for funding to assist in the carbon
neutral goal.
3. That future sources of funding be considered and programming of works
identified to achieve the net-carbon zero by 2030 target.

Reasons for decision
In July 2019 Full Council passed a motion which declared a Climate Emergency with
the overarching goal of “rendering the borough carbon neutral by the year 2030”.
This goal means the borough shall produce no net carbon emissions by this date,
taking account of actions that have the effect of removing carbon from the
environment. Following this declaration, a cross party working group was established
to move forward the agenda towards a carbon neutral borough.
Part of this work involves rendering all council operations net carbon neutral by
2030. This includes looking at the Council owned buildings. A systematic strategy ss
required when considering the Council buildings given the size, complexity and
general cost of any works required to move towards a carbon neutral status.
Consideration must also be given to the timing of these works allowing for the age of
the buildings, current infrastructure and life span, current and future technologies
and costs of implementation. This systematic approach is referred to as a
Decarbonisation Plan.
Alternative options considered and rejected
Following a successful grant application to the Public Sector Decarbonisation
Scheme an award of £145,004 has been made for energy efficiency improvements
to the Civic Centre, West Paddock. One of the conditions of this grant award is to
have a Decarbonisation Plan completed, approved by Members and submitted to the
grant administrators by September 2021.
Failure to meet this deadline would result in the Council being in breach of the grant
conditions and potentially having to repay the full £145,004, most of which has
Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 10

Agenda Item 3
7

already been allocated. It would also be detrimental to any future grant bids made by
the Council.
Therefore, for the reasons outlined above, no alternative options were appropriate .
25

Key Contracts and Partnerships Framework
The Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member (Strategy and Reform) presented a
report of the Deputy Chief Executive present for approval the Key Partnerships and
Contracts Framework (included at appendix A).

Decision made
That the framework be approved and adopted.
Reasons for decision
As part of the South Ribble Annual Governance Statement, there is an action to
develop a Key Contracts and Partnerships Framework to ensure effective monitoring
of key contracts and partnerships to demonstrate and evidence that they are
delivering effective, efficient and economic services providing best value for the
Council.
Alternative options considered and rejected
The alternative is the Council does not have a Key Contracts and Partnerships
Framework in place. This was rejected on the basis that there are key contracts and
partnerships within the Council which would benefit from additional effective
monitoring to demonstrate and evidence that they are delivering effective, efficient
and economic services providing best value for the Council.

26

Exclusion of Press and Public
Decision made
That the press and public for be excluded for the following items of business on the
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

27

Key Contracts and Partnership Framework - Appendix B
Members considered an initial update on performance contained in Appendix B to
the report, which contained restricted information.
Decision made
That the updated performance contained in Appendix B to the report be noted.
Reasons for decision

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 11

Agenda Item 3
8

This was presented for information only.
28

South Ribble Extra Care Scheme – West Paddock
The Cabinet Member (Finance, Property and Assets) presented a report of the
Director of Commercial which presented 3 options for the proposed extra care
scheme at West Paddock supported by financial models. The report sought approval
of a preferred delivery option to enable the scheme design to be developed and a
more detailed project budget prepared.

Decision made
1. To approve the progression of design option 3 outlined in the report.

2. To note that £200k of the allocated £10 million budget will be drawn upon to
deliver the next stage of the design (RIBA Stage 2 and 3) and contractor
procurement process.
3. To note the current estimated project cost to deliver the 72 unit scheme is
£14.260 million.
4. To acknowledge that the further design works set out in paragraph 4 are
required to verify the projected project cost of £14,260 million, and that further
updates on the costs will be brought back when the next stage of design work
has been progressed.
Reasons for decision
The decision will enable the progression of the Council’s Corporate Strategy
objective to deliver affordable housing within the borough with, the delivery of a 72bed development. The development of the design work will enable a more detailed
project budget to be prepared and progression of the project will support the
progression of a funding bid with Homes England through their affordable homes
programme.
Alternative options considered and rejected
The alternative option would be to deliver a smaller scheme of 50 units. The
estimated construction costs of this scheme would align with the currently allocated
capital budget of £10 million. This option was rejected as it will be beneficial to
maximise the development site and deliver as many units as possible (while
maintaining adequate public open space for the community). This will address the
demand for extra care and reduce the need for alternative sites in the future. By
progressing a larger development there will be efficiency savings for the construction
and the future operation of a single extra care facility.
Delivery of a smaller scheme would not provide maximum opportunity to meet the
policy objective for increasing affordable rents.

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Page 12

Agenda Item 3
9

Chair

Cabinet Wednesday 14 July 2021

Date

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report of

Meeting

Date

Deputy Chief Executive
(Introduced by Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member
(Strategy and Reform))

Cabinet

15 September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

No

Shared Consultation Framework
Purpose of the Report
1.

To present the consultation framework for approval.

Recommendations to Cabinet
2. Cabinet are asked to approve the Consultation Framework in Appendix A.
Reasons for recommendations
3.

The Consultation Framework sets out how South Ribble Borough Council undertakes
consultations.

4. Without a framework, consultations may not be consistently planned and undertaken in
the proper way across the council. This can lead to poor consultations and consequently
poor decision making. This framework is a shared approach across Chorley and South
Ribble Councils which will provide a consistent approach for staff to work too.
5. Consultation is also a way for communities, residents and businesses to engage with the
Council and shape their local area. Without a framework key features that promote
inclusivity and accessibility may not be routinely applied, inadvertently leaving some voices
unheard.
6. The framework provides officers across South Ribble Borough Council with the guidance
and tools to undertake high quality consultations as and when needed.

Other options considered and rejected
7. To not have a framework. As shared services continues to develop consultations could
continue to be undertaken unilaterally by services, however the quality may be

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
inconsistent. Further to this, different processes across shared teams could lead to
confusion or misapplication, whereas a single shared framework will provide
consistency.
Corporate priorities
8.

The report relates to the following corporate priorities:
An exemplary council

Thriving communities

A fair local economy that works for everyone

Good homes, green spaces, healthy places

Background to the report
9. In November 2020, a review was launched to produce a shared consultation policy with
Chorley Borough Council, seeking to harmonise and strengthen the approach to consulting
across South Ribble Borough Council. This forms part of the wider implementation of
shared services Phase 1, as well as responding to a need identified within the Annual
Governance Statement action plan.
10. This resulted in the creation of the Consultation Framework, which is shared between
South Ribble and Chorley Councils. The purpose of the framework is to ensure that the
council has a clear statement of the approach it will take to consultation, supporting all
officers to apply a consistent approach.
11. The framework also provides staff with a straightforward guide on how to conduct
consultations, outlining the overall approach and presenting a step-by-step toolkit on how
to conduct consultation activities.
12. The drafted Consultation Framework is presented in Appendix A.
Overview of the Framework
13. Consultations are part of a range of methods that the Council can seek feedback from
communities and stakeholders. It is distinct to community engagement, where that is an
ongoing process of developing relationships and partnerships with local people. A
consultation may be one of the ways that we engage. The framework is part of the
overall toolkit to reinforce and support engagement, setting out clearly when and how we
consult.
14. The framework sets out a consistent approach across the council so that every
consultation undertaken is of high quality. The framework includes:
 Defining what a consultation is and when they are necessary.
 The council’s approach to consultations.
 A six-step toolkit on how to conduct a consultation. This includes guidance on the
types of questions to ask, how to determine an audience, as well as how to store
and manage data correctly.
 Consultation Initiation Documentation (CID).
 Equality monitoring questions.
 The range of consultation methods.

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
15. It should be noted that the framework does not replace or supersede guidelines or
consultation methodologies set down by external bodies or central government. For
example, local planning consultations are managed through nationally agreed
frameworks and statutory guidelines.
16. The framework has been developed by researching current best practise from other local
authorities and considering well known consultation methods and principles such as the
‘Gunning Principles’ which set out guidance on fair consultation processes.
17. The key improvements brought forward by the framework are:
 Introduction of mandatory equality monitoring questions.
 Creation of a step-by-step toolkit to guide staff through the consultation design,
implementation, and analysis process.
 Introduction of a Consultation Initiation Document to provide an additional guide
to staff on how to conduct and evaluate consultations.
18. In addition to the current toolkit and assistive documents, a checklist will be developed to
ensure that the framework is applied robustly so that all key parts of the framework have
been considered and applied.
Climate change and air quality
19.

The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place.

Equality and diversity
20. The framework places an obligation on officers to ensure that any consultation that is
developed and undertaken is inclusive and accessible to everyone in our community by
considering and addressing potential barriers to participation.
21. Within the framework officers will be required to undertake an equality impact
assessment as part of every consultation they do, which will serve to highlight any
barriers and provide an action plan on removing or mitigating areas that could prevent
fair access and not enable peoples voices to be heard.
Risk
22. The framework acts to mitigate risks to the Council resulting from poor consultation. It
provides the tools and guidance to ensure officers undertake high quality consultations
that meet required and expected standards from stakeholders.
23. The key risk to the framework is poor implementation, whereby officers are not aware of
the requirements placed on them as well as not being provided sufficient or adequate
training. To mitigate this risk a communications and training plan will be implemented
following the approval of the framework by cabinet.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
24. There are no financial implications of this report.

Page 17

Agenda Item 5
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
25. There are no concerns to raise from a Monitoring Officer perspective. Carrying out sound
and robust consultation exercises can help to improve the quality of decisions being
made – further it can also help to reduce the chances of the council being subject to a
judicial review challenge.
Background documents
There are no background papers to this report
Appendices
Appendix A: Shared Consultation Framework
Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Howard Anthony
(Performance and
Partnerships Team
Leader)

howard.anthony@southribble.gov.uk 01772
625546

Page 18

Date:
10.08.2021

Consultation
Framework
2021

Page 19

Consultation Framework 2021

Introduction
Purpose of the framework
The Consultation Framework sets out how Chorley and South Ribble Councils undertake
consultations. It provides step by step instructions and guidance on how to design, deliver,
and evaluate consultation activities using best practice.
This framework will apply in general, however where there are statutory or external
requirements for undertaking consultations in a prescribed manner, those requirements take
precedence.

Key principles
This framework sets out the key principles, or our ‘commitment to consultation’, that are to
be applied when undertaking consultation exercises. These are to ensure that:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Consultation is planned effectively, undertaken in a timely manner at the appropriate
stage in the decision-making process, and that results are used effectively to inform
policy development and service delivery,
We make it clear the purpose of an exercise and how it feeds into the decisionmaking process,
Sufficient information is provided and accessible to participants to inform their
response,
Everyone has the opportunity to contribute and have their views heard,
We consult using the most appropriate methods (both electronic and more traditional)
to ensure that all groups can participate fully,
Sufficient time is provided to respond, and for consideration of key findings,
The results are used to inform the decision-making process,
Key findings are fed back to participants,
All consultations are registered and disseminated through our Consultation Portal
(www.yoursay.citizenspace.com).

What we mean by consultation
Defining a consultation
A consultation is a one-off process to enable resident
or partner feedback to shape a policy, process, or
decision. A formal consultation is carried out if the
proposal or plan is likely to have a substantial impact
on access to services, a change in provision of service
or the wider community such as economic impact, or
regeneration.
Consultations are one of a range of ways that we can seek feedback from our community.
It is different to community engagement, which is an ongoing process of developing
relationships and partnerships with local people. Engagement is about having continuous
conversations and gathering intelligence on the changing needs of our communities
through neighbourhood working and our community hubs.

Page 20

Consultation Frmework 2021

Our process
To be clear, there are no general rules as to the kind or amount of consultation required. By
the nature of each proposal or issue, the appropriate approach to eliciting feedback will vary
depending upon the circumstances that call for it. Therefore, it is neither feasible, nor
possible to lay out prescriptively a one size fits all approach. However, we believe that our
consultations should reflect the process below:

The views of stakeholders
are collected through
consultation activities.

LISTEN

ANALYSE

Reports are presented to
decision makers, who use
them to design policies and
strategies.

Feedback is analysed to
identify themes and priorities.
This is then used to create
reports.

REPORT

IMPROVED
OUTCOMES

Improved outcomes are
secured as policies are
shaped by the people they
effect.

When we consult
Under the current statutory guidance, we are required to hold a consultation when:

•
•
•

Creating or changing a service,
Allocating funding,
Planning decisions.

In addition to this, we seek to go beyond our statutory duties by creating extra opportunities
to inform and listen to our communities, partners, and service users. This includes when:

•
•
•

Designing policies,
Identifying priorities,
Developing strategies.

Page 21

Consultation Framework 2021

The role of councillors
As decision-makers, elected members will use consultation to inform the decisions they
make. This may involve balancing competing priorities, or balancing consultation findings
with other factors (i.e. resources available).
Portfolio holders will have a special interest in any consultations affecting their specific remit
and should be involved in the scoping of the consultation exercise and kept informed of its
progress.
Individual ward members should be consulted on proposals that will affect the area they
represent.
Portfolio holders and ward members will also have an active role in disseminating and
communicating the findings of the consultation and how this has been used to inform any
subsequent decisions and policies.

Officers’ roles and responsibilities
Managers are responsible for ensuring that all council employees understand and apply the
consultation process outlined in this framework and that there is sufficient time and resource
allocated to undertake the exercise effectively and meaningfully.
All consultation exercises should have a lead officer identified and responsible for planning,
designing and undertaking the exercise and disseminating the findings. This will include
ensuring the principles and commitments to consult in this framework are adhered to.
The Performance and Partnerships team in Transformation and Partnerships provides an
oversight and advisory role. In doing so, the team can:

•
•
•
•
•

Provide training and support for using our Consultation Portal,
Publishing any consultations via the Consultation Portal,
Managing the Consultation Portal,
Promoting consultation best practice throughout the council,
Updating the Consultation Policy and resources on consultation.

Page 22

APPENDIX A - Consultation Toolkit

Consultation Framework 2021

Starting your consultation
The six steps below provide staff with instructions on how to conduct consultation activities.
To ensure the quality and consistency of our engagement activities, all consultations must
be approved by Performance and Partnerships before publication.

STEP ONE: Scoping out your consultation
When scoping out your consultation there are some key things to consider and note:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Make sure the consultation is necessary.
Be clear about what you are trying to achieve and set clear objectives. What do you
want to find out?
Avoid duplication and over-lapping activities with other services by ensuring the
information isn’t being collected elsewhere.
Every consultation needs to be approved by a Service Lead or Director.
Allow adequate time for consultees to respond and for their views to be fully
considered before any action or decision is made.
Consider how much capacity is needed and the resources needed to implement any
changes following the outcomes of the exercise.
The Consultation Initiation Document can be found at Appendix B as an additional
tool to help plan a consultation.

STEP TWO: Who are you consulting?
Being clear about who you are going to consult ensures that decisions and policies are being
informed by the people they affect and allows us to consider those who may have barriers to
participation. This ensures that consultations are inclusive and are representative of our
communities.

Equality and Inclusion
An inclusive consultation is one that is accessible to everyone
in our community by considering and addressing potential
barriers to participation. This ensures all our residents are
empowered to have their say irrespective of their background
and that consultations are representative.
This includes barriers faced by protected groups, which are
age, ethnicity, gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, marriage and civil partnership, sexual orientation,
and rurality.
To understand more about equality and inclusion as well as protected groups, see
our Equality Framework. There are also Neighbourhood Intelligence Profiles
available that present key statistics on our communities.

Key questions to consider:
• Who are the key stakeholders?
• Is there any background data on the stakeholders?
• What obstacles to participation may there be
including for protected groups?

Page 23

Consultation Framework 2021

STEP THREE: What methods are you using for consultation?
There are a range of tools and techniques available for undertaking consultations. The
method used will depend on the sample size, audience, and purpose of the consultation. For
instance, different groups respond more successfully to different engagement methods.
When designing a consultation, accessibility must be considered. This ensures that all our
residents are able to participate. For examples of methods, including their advantages and
disadvantages, see Appendix E.
It is essential that all our participants are given sufficient resources and time in order to make
an informed response. Consider how the consultation will be promoted and what materials
will be presented to participants. Internally, consider the time and resources needed in order
to conduct the consultation and analyse the results.

Citizen Space
A key resource available for conducting consultations is
CitizenSpace. This is our digital consultation platform that
allows us to design and publish consultations as well as
store and analyse results from participants digitally. All
consultations on the platform must be approved by
Performance and Partnerships before they can be
published.
Any consultations not done on CitizenSpace must subsequently be recorded on the
platform. This ensures that the data from the consultation can inform wider decision
making and that duplication can be avoided. For information on how to access and use
CitizenSpace, contact Performance and Partnerships.

Key questions to consider:
• What method would the target participants respond
best to?

•
•
•
•
•

How much time and resources will be needed?
Has accessibility been considered?
How will the consultation be promoted?
Have the participants been given sufficient time
and resources to make an informed decision?
Has corporate branding been used?

STEP FOUR: What question are you going to ask?
It is important to consider the type of question you ask participants, which will depend on
what you are looking to find out and the type of information you wish to collect. Questions
should be well structured and easy to understand, with language suitable for non-specialist
audiences. This is an important part of accessibility as it ensures that everyone in our
community can easily understand and therefore participate in decisions that affect them.
Open questions are good for yielding lots of detailed qualitative information. These are
questions that allow participants to leave their feedback. For example, ‘What is your opinion
on the proposed policy?’.
Closed questions can be used to get decisive answers on a particular issue or policy. These
are questions that present serval options for participants to select in their response. These
include multiple choice, which present serval options, as well as binary questions, which
present two options. For example, ‘Do you agree on the proposed policy changes? Yes/No’.

Page 24

Equality Monitoring Questions

Consultation Framework 2021

Every engagement activity is required to ask equality monitoring
questions unless there is a clear predetermined reason otherwise
that is agreed with Performance and Partnerships. The questions
cover each of the protected characteristics under the Equality Act
2010 and are optional for participants to complete.
These give a useful indication of whether council activities are
representative of the local population and can inform measures
needed to tackle any underrepresentation.
The equality monitoring question are available at Appendix C and Appendix D for each
Council (different versions include a different link to privacy policy for each council). The
equality monitoring questions are also available on CitizenSpace under saved questions.

Key questions to consider:
• Do the questions meet the objectives of the
consultation?

•
•
•

What type of data are you looking to collect?
Qualitative (more descriptive) or quantitative (more
numerical)?
Have Equality Monitoring Questions been used?
Are the questions easy to understand?

STEP FIVE: How are you storing the data?
Consultations often involve collecting personal information. Therefore, it is important to
consider how information is stored and who can access it in order to be compliant with
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). As Data Controllers, we have a duty to ensure
that informed is stored and used correctly and that we are transparent in how we use data.
See our Data Protection Policy as well as Special Data Processing Policy for guidance.

General Data Protection Regulation
GDPR is designed to ensure personal information is handled
correctly, stored securely, and used appropriately. There are key
principles to the regulation that we must follow:

•
•
•
•

Purpose limitation: data must be collected for a specified,
explicit, and legitimate purpose.
Data minimisation: data should not be held or further used
unless essential for reasons in the original scope.
Storage limitation: personal information must be deleted
when no longer necessary. How is the data being data
stored and for how long?
Integrity and confidentiality: data must be processed and
stored securely. Who has access to the data?

With all our consultation activities, a Privacy Notice must be presented to
participants, which can found on each councils’ website. This ensures that we are
transparent with the information we collect and that people are aware of how we use
data. Have participants been presented with the Privacy Notice?

Page 25

Consultation Framework 2021

STEP SIX: How will you evaluate and use the results?
To ensure that consultations have real outcomes that shape the final outcome, it is critical
that results from engagement exercises are analysed so that they can inform decisions
effectively. Consider how the information collected through the consultation will be evaluated
and how that analysis will be presented to ensure it can easily be interpreted by decision
makers. For consultations conducted on CitizenSpace, the digital platform provides analysis
tools that can interpret respondent information.
When the survey is complete, it is important to record any lessons learned to improve future
consultations including what worked well and what you might change next time to improve
the process.
Once data from a consultation activity is analysed, consider how and when the information
will be reviewed by decision makers, such as what committee the results will be presented
to, to ensure participant feedback in considered effectively as part of decision making.
It is also critical that feedback is given to participants after the consultation is completed so
that that they understand how their feedback influenced decisions and it can encourage
future participation. This can include updating the consultation webpage on the Councils’
websites with the results from the consultation and any relevant reports.

Key questions to consider:
• Have the results been reported to decision makers
and participants?

•
•
•

Has the consultation achieved its aims?
Have the results been reported in an easily
accessible way?
Has the consultation been recorded on
CitizenSpace?

Page 26

Page 27

Consultation Framework 2021

Appendix B – Consultation Initiation Document (CID)
Responsible
officer:

Service area:

Corporate Priority being
addressed:
One off or ongoing activity
(including frequency):

Consultation type:

The table below outlines the key elements that should be considered when planning a consultation activity. The evaluation column will enable
you to review how well you did against the original brief and deliberate on potential improvements for future consultations.

Action
What are your aims and objectives?
(Please consider whether these have been
achieved when evaluating)

Who is your consultation aimed at?
(Please consider ‘hard to reach’ groups
and the number of participants)

What information/research has been
done previously? (Please consider any
information that may support the
consultation)

Has an Equality Impact Assessment
(EIA) been completed? (Please consider
the impact on protected groups under
Equality Act 2010)

Brief

Evaluation

Page 28

Consultation Framework 2021

What is the engagement timeline?
(Please account for preparation,
conducting the engagement, and analysing
results)

Money
Venue
What resources
are needed to
conduct the
engagement?

Staff
Volunteers
Materials
Other

What type of report will be produced at
the end? (Please consider how the results
will be analysed and where they will be
reported)

How will the results be fed back to
participants?

Appendix C – South Ribble Equality Monitoring Questions

Consultation Framework 2021

These monitoring questions are optional and enable us to increase our knowledge and understanding of
our diverse communities and gather information about who uses our services. The information you provide
in our consultations will be used to make sure that our services are being accessed equally.
Although these optional questions do not ask for your name, we still handle any information provided with
data protection in mind, and therefore it is only kept as long as necessary and then deleted securely. For
more information please see our Privacy Policy here.

Q1 Can you please confirm your full postcode? (PLEASE WRITE FULL POSTCODE BELOW e.g. PR7 1DP)
Q2 Which of the following best describes your gender?
Male ☐

Female ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

If you describe your gender with another term, please provide here

Q3 Does your gender identity match your assigned sex at birth?
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q4 What was your age at your last birthday? (PLEASE WRITE IN THE BOX)
Prefer not to say ☐

Years

Q5 Do you consider yourself disabled? (As defined by the Equality Act 2010 as having a longstanding illness, disability, or infirmity)
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q6 To which of these groups do you consider you belong?
British ☐

White

Asian/Asian British Indian ☐ Pakistani ☐ Chinese ☐

Irish ☐

Any other White background__________

Any other Asian background__________

Black/Black British African ☐ Caribbean ☐

Mixed White & Black Caribbean ☐ White & Black African ☐

Any other Black/Black British background__________

White & Asian ☐ Any other mixed background__________
Prefer not to say ☐

Q7 Do you identify with any religion or belief?
Yes ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

No ☐

If yes, please specify here

Q8 Do you consider yourself to be…?
Bisexual ☐

Heterosexual/straight ☐

Gay man ☐

Gay woman or lesbian ☐

Other ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q9 Are you currently pregnant or have you given birth in the last 26 weeks?
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q10 Are you currently…?
Married ☐
Single ☐

In a civil partnership ☐

Divorced or civil partnership dissolved ☐

Separated ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Page 29

Cohabiting ☐

Appendix D – Chorley Equality Monitoring Questions

Consultation Framework 2021

These monitoring questions are optional and enable us to increase our knowledge and understanding of
our diverse communities and gather information about who uses our services. The information you provide
in our consultations will be used to make sure that our services are being accessed equally.
Although these optional questions do not ask for your name, we still handle any information provided with
data protection in mind, and therefore it is only kept as long as necessary and then deleted securely. For
more information please see our Privacy Policy here.
Q1 Can you please confirm your full postcode? (PLEASE WRITE FULL POSTCODE BELOW e.g. PR7 1DP)
Q2 Which of the following best describes your gender?
Male ☐

Female ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

If you describe your gender with another term, please provide here

Q3 Does your gender identity match your assigned sex at birth?
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q4 What was your age at your last birthday? (PLEASE WRITE IN THE BOX)
Prefer not to say ☐

Years

Q5 Do you consider yourself disabled? (As defined by the Equality Act 2010 as having a longstanding illness, disability, or infirmity)
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q6 To which of these groups do you consider you belong?
British ☐

White

Asian/Asian British Indian ☐ Pakistani ☐ Chinese ☐

Irish ☐

Any other White background__________

Any other Asian background__________

Black/Black British African ☐ Caribbean ☐

Mixed White & Black Caribbean ☐ White & Black African ☐

Any other Black/Black British background__________

White & Asian ☐ Any other mixed background__________
Prefer not to say ☐

Q7 Do you identify with any religion or belief?
Yes ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

No ☐

If yes, please specify here

Q8 Do you consider yourself to be…?
Bisexual ☐

Heterosexual/straight ☐

Gay man ☐

Gay woman or lesbian ☐

Other ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q9 Are you currently pregnant or have you given birth in the last 26 weeks?
Yes ☐

No ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Q10 Are you currently…?
Married ☐
Single ☐

In a civil partnership ☐

Divorced or civil partnership dissolved ☐

Separated ☐

Prefer not to say ☐

Page 30

Cohabiting ☐

Appendix E – Method Examples

Page 31

Consultation Framework 2021

The table below presents some of the methods that can be used to conduct consultation activities:

Method

Focus Group

Description
An organised group discussion that
explore issues in depth and seeks
to gain views of particular interest
groups.

Advantages
•
•
•

An investigation into people’s views
on issues by presenting a set of
questions. Can be conducting
virtually, manually, or over the
telephone.

Survey
This can be conducted digitally via
our digital consultation platform
CitizenSpace.

•
•
•
•
•

Consultation Document

Providing information and inviting
public submissions and comments
on specific proposals, which are
published via reports and
documents. This can be conducted
digitally via our digital consultation
platform CitizenSpace.

•
•

Facilitates interaction and
brainstorming between
participants.
Can be targeted at ‘hard to
reach’ groups.
Can explore complex issues
in depth.
Typically for an 8 to 10 group.
Usually receives a good
response rate due to
convenience.
Can be conducted in
confidence to explore
sensitive issues.
Responses can be
disaggregated by
characteristics.
Can be cost effective if done
virtually.
Provides detailed information
to stakeholders.
Elicits informed responses.

Disadvantages
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Can be time consuming and
costly.
Requires a trained facilitator
to conduct session.
Lack of confidentiality.
May need several groups to
gain different perspectives.
Interviewer cannot respond
to any of the respondent’s
questions.
Can be difficult to analyse
when there is a small
sample size.
Can be time consuming
waiting for a response.

Can have a poor response
rate.
Difficult to target hard to
reach groups.
Can be costly (i.e.
publication resources).
Requires writing skills to
formulate documentation.

Workshop

•

A formally organised discussion
group to exchange and gather
information. Usually in the format of
presentations that are followed by
small group discussions, ending in
a large group discussion of key
issues.

•

•
•

•

•

Page 32

Consultation Framework 2021

Forum / Citizen Panel

A structured and regular meeting
with an interest group. Used to
provide information, seek views
and, develop/endorse local plans
and strategies. Composed of a
dedicated set of participants. Can
be conducted digitally.

This can be conducted remotely.
•

Public Meeting

A formal one off meeting with
scheduled agendas. Used to
provide information, seek views,
and develop/ endorse local plans
and strategies.

•
•
•

Facilitates committed
engagement and participation.
Can form strong links
between services, partners,
and local people.
Can be aimed at hard to
reach groups.
Large numbers of people can
participate.
Encourages participants to
network and share
experiences, facilitating
dialogue between
stakeholders.
Participants can ask
questions.
Opportunity to share large
amounts of information.
Cheap to host.
Opportunity to provide
information and receive
feedback.
Builds relationships with local
community

Social media

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

This can be conducted remotely.

Uploading a post on social media
in order to facilitate discussion via
the platform through comments
and sharing.

•

•
•

Accessible to a large
audience.
Cheap to conduct.

•
•
•

Attendees are unlikely to
represent all views.
Can be dominated by the
most vocal.
The agenda can be taken
over.
Can be poorly attended.
Requires a large amount of
preparation.
Can be costly and time
consuming.
Attendees are unlikely to
represent all views

Attendees are unlikely to
represent all views
Large group may be a
barrier.
Can be dominated by the
most vocal.
Difficult to differentiate
between individual and
general views.
No equality monitoring.
Comments can be resource
intensive to analyse.
Not accessible to those who
do not have social media.

Agenda Item 6
Report of
Deputy Chief Executive
(Introduced by Leader of
the Council and Cabinet
Member (Strategy and
Reform)

Meeting

Date

Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel

13th September 2021

Cabinet

15th September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

No

Quarter 1 Performance Monitoring Report
Purpose of the Report
1.

To provide Cabinet with a position statement for the Corporate Strategy for quarter one
(April – June) 2021/22.

Recommendations to Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel
2. The Scrutiny Budget and Performance Panel are asked to consider the report and make
comments and recommendations to the Cabinet
Recommendations to Cabinet
3. Cabinet is asked to consider and comment on the report.
Reasons for recommendations
4. The Council’s performance framework sets out the process for reporting progress
against the objectives of the Corporate Strategy. Robust monitoring ensures that the
council continues to deliver its priorities and achieves the best outcomes for residents.
Other options considered and rejected
5. None
Executive summary
6. This report presents the performance of the Corporate Strategy at the end of quarter one
(April – June 2021). This report provides an update on the current position for the 14
projects, 24 Corporate Strategy performance measures and 13 key organisational
performance measures.
7. Of the 14 projects in the strategy: 79% (11) are rated green and on-track; 21% (three)
are rated amber.
8. Of the 24 performance indicators used to monitor the Corporate Strategy, seven can be
reported at the end of the quarter. 42% (three) are rated green, 29% (two) are rated red
and 29% (two) are yet to be baselined.

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

9. Of the 13 key organisational performance measures; 12 can be reported at the end of
the quarter. 58% (seven) are performing better than target; 25% (three) are performing
worse that target but within a 5% tolerance of the target; and 17% (two) are worse than
target and outside the 5% tolerance.
Corporate priorities
10. The report relates to the following corporate priorities:
An exemplary council

Thriving communities

A fair local economy that works for
everyone

Good homes, green spaces, healthy
places

Background to the report
11. At Council on 30th September 2020, the Corporate Strategy was updated and refreshed
to ensure that the Council can continue to meet the needs of the borough.
12. The four priorities identified in the strategy are:
 An exemplary council,
 Thriving communities,
 A fair local economy that works for everyone,
 Good homes, green spaces, healthy places.
13. Activity and resources are targeted towards 14 priority projects which are delivered over
a period of 12-18 months and measured using 24 performance indicators. This report
provides the status of the projects and measures at the end of quarter one, 2021-22.
14. A colour rating system is used to indicate status whereby:
Projects
RED
Off track
AMBER Forecast delays or concerns, an early warning of issues
GREEN On track and progressing as planning
Performance Indicators






Worse than target, outside threshold
Worse than target but within threshold (5%)
Performance is better than target

Page 34

Agenda Item 6

A COUNCIL THAT:
Delivers high performing
services that represent
value for money

Understand the community
and work with partners to
make things better

Is open and transparent in
its activities

Achievements this quarter
15. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) action plan continues to improve the
transparency and openness of the Council. Progress has been made on developing the
Consultation Framework which is due to be formally signed off in September and will
ensure a consistent approach to consultation with residents. The principles of the Key
Partnerships and Contracts Framework were agreed at Governance Committee in March
2021 and were considered for approval by Cabinet in July 2021 and subsequently
approved. The framework provides a robust approach to managing strategic contracts
and partnerships. Work is also underway with updating the Officer Scheme of Delegation
to reflect the recently adopted shared management structure.
16. The development of Shared Services has moved forward this quarter with the
progression of a shared ICT service and shared Customer Services. The ICT
management structure included the appointment of a service lead and three team
leaders across both South Ribble and Chorley Councils. Proposals for the Customer
Services management structure have been developed and presented to the Shared
Services Joint Committee. Formal consultations have commenced for the Customer
Service review, which includes briefings for all Customer Service staff. Staff and teams
continue to be supported with organisational development activity as part of ensuring a
positive culture.
17. The delivery of the first year of the Digital Strategy Action plan commenced in quarter
one to further develop the use of digital, technology and data to improve services and
deliver better outcomes for customers. The systems used in the contact centres for both
Council’s have been reviewed and technologies aligned. ‘Anywhere 365’ software has
been deployed to provide greater resilience and improved flexibility. The Customer
Service agents now have increased access to call data which helps to improve advice
and decision making to achieve a better customer experience. Telephony has been
reviewed and Microsoft Teams, as the chosen solution, has been rolled out across both
authorities. Trial meeting room technology has also been established for the Leader of
the Council and is currently undergoing testing.
18. Partners from both South Ribble Partnership and the Chorley Public Service Reform
Board formally agreed to establish a single strategic partnership that represents both
Chorley and South Ribble districts. The partnership will strive to achieve better outcomes
for residents from both districts, through the sharing of experience, resources, and
knowledge. Following the workshop that took place in March 2021 a key objective has
been the development of a strategy based around the following three themes;
developing a locality model for service delivery, shared data and intelligence, and
economic reform. Looking forward to the next quarter, a completed strategy and action
plan will be presented for consideration by the newly formed partnership with the first
meeting to take place in September 2021.
19. Of the four projects within this priority, three are rated green and one is rated amber.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
2021-22
Quarter 1
(Apr – Jun)

Projects
Deliver the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan

GREEN

Transform the way the council operates

GREEN

Work with partners to design and deliver better public service:

GREEN

Deliver year one of the joint digital strategy

Amber

Deliver year one of the joint digital strategy:

AMBER

The strategy focuses on harnessing the potential of new technologies,
whilst maximising the use of existing technologies to provide a
customer focused approach to service delivery.

Issue:

The ICT service across both authorities have had several vacancies resulting
in skills and knowledge gaps which will be fundamental in the delivery of the
Joint Digital Strategy project. There are a number of workstreams within the
strategy that need to be further scoped and resourced to ensure successful
delivery.

Actions Plan The ICT service is currently going through a service review as part of shared
-What will be services. The ICT service review will help bring this project back on track by
ensuring that there is the necessary capacity, resources and skills in place to
done:
deliver all elements of the Digital Strategy.

Key Performance Indicators
20. Of the five performance measures reported under this outcome, two are due to be
reported this quarter, one is rated green and one is rated red. A full list of the
performance indicators is included in Appendix 1.
The green rated measure is as below:
 The percentage of households living in fuel poverty will be better than the
North West average
The red rated measure is as below:
 At least 40% of service requests will be received via self-service channels
Key Performance Indicator

Target

Comparable
Period

Quarter 1
2020/21

Symbol

Trend

At least 40% of service
requests will be received via
self-service channels

40%

30.59%
(Q4 2020/21)

32.5%



Better than
Q4 2020/21

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Commentary:

There has been an increase in requests received via selfserve channels when compared to last quarter, however it
remains below the 40% target. The delivery of the Digital
Strategy and the review of Customer Services will put
initiatives and resources in place to encourage greater
utilisation of self-service channels.
This will support people to complete transactions through the
refreshed website and promote an easier way to transact with
the Council online, enabling the Customer Contact Centre to
better support more complex cases, including supporting
vulnerable customers.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

A PLACE WHERE:
Residents have positive
mental health

People get involved and
have a sense of belonging

Communities can access
services and support when
they need them

Achievements this quarter
21. The Mental Health support programme for young people has progressed this quarter,
with the communities’ team alongside elected members taking part in 11 Community
Conversations events. The events took place in each neighbourhood area across the
Borough and engaged with 278 members of the public. The conversations have provided
feedback from young people on the mental health and wellbeing needs of the local
community and have highlighted areas were the council can support and promote
positive mental health. An accredited Mental Health First Aid training package has been
secured through Lancashire Mind which will be rolled out to staff over the coming months
to ensure the necessary skills and knowledge to effectively deal with young people’s
mental health.
22. Work been ongoing to further develop relationships with Lancashire County Council’s
family liaison service, schools, community groups and youth groups in South Ribble to
promote better partnerships to improve the overall mental health offer to young people
across the district. A consultation with young people (aged 4 -16) funded through a Cooperative Councils Innovation Network (CCIN) grant is to commence in quarter two
which will further explore what young people feel is important for their local community in
relation to mental health support.
23. The development of the Youth Council has progressed well this quarter with the initial
promotion via social media and press releases to generate awareness of the project.
Contact has been made with ‘Shout Out’ young people’s advocacy group to provide
proposals to develop political literacy skills and build confidence to prepare young people
to take part in the Youth Council. Further engagement with more difficult to reach young
people will take place in quarter two. The councils holiday activity and food programmes
will also be used to recruit young people and raise the profile of the Youth Council.
24. The Community Hub action plans are progressing with regular planning meetings and
hub chair briefings being held to monitor progress of the agreed action plans for each
area. Some example action plan projects delivered include the delivery of ‘Living Room
Live’ (an online version of Penwortham Live Community Music Festival), provision of
plants and trees to the new Peace Garden at the rear of the Civic Centre, and
consultation on Phase 2 of the works to be carried out at Much Hoole Village Hall.
Newsletters, new Facebook pages have been published, and community conversation
events have been held to enable consultation and member engagement with
communities.
25. All foodbanks have obtained registration with Environmental health, ensuring a coordinated approach and that network members are registered food providers with the
appropriate safeguarding and governance arrangements. The foodbank network
partners have continued to support residents with food, cleaning products, toiletries, pet
food and baby related goods.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
26. Of the three projects within this priority, all three are rated green.
2021-22
Quarter 1
(Apr – Jun)

Projects
Establish South Ribble Together Hubs

GREEN

Deliver a mental health support programme for young people

GREEN

Establish a Youth Council

GREEN

Key Performance Indicators
27. Of the eight performance measures reported under this outcome, two are due to be
reported this quarter. Both measures are to be baselined.
 Number of residents benefiting from opportunities created by the
communities’ team:
 Number of meals provided to school age children through holiday hunger
offer
A full list of the performance indicators is included in Appendix 1.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

A COUNCIL THAT:
Increases access to
training and jobs

Grows and supports
sustainable businesses

Invests in improving the
borough

Achievements this quarter
28. The Community Wealth Building programme has made good progress including the
opening of the Unify Credit Union branch in South Ribble on the 21st June 2021. The
Credit Union will provide access to ethical and sustainable finance for all residents,
supporting the ethos of an inclusive local economy. An officer is now in post to support
the delivery of the Community Wealth Building action plan, which has been reviewed and
translated into a local implementation plan. There has been joint agreement by both
Councils to implement the Social Value Portal as a tool to measure council procurement
outcomes and quantify benefits for the community such as job creation and local spend.
29. The Council continues to support local businesses through the administration of Covid
support grants and wider advice or assistance. Delivery of the business support
programme aims to reduce the potential for business failures, support viable business
and support economic recovery following the impact of the pandemic. During quarter
one, there have been 1,622 grants, with a total value of £18,620,000. Work is now in
progress to further develop the offer and options that will provide extended support once
the government grants come to an end. Timescales have been amended in line with the
changes to government guidance and extension of some grant schemes.
30. The Leyland Town Deal has progressed with the signing of Heads of Teams and the
development of the business case alongside the design works. The procurement of the
professional design team has commenced and is due to be completed in quarter two.
The design team will provide information to support the development of the business
case for all three projects areas which are Leyland town centre improvements, Leyland
Market improvements and a business hub development to offer commercial workspace,
events and skills training. Stakeholder engagement will commence, and governance
arrangements will be finalised to support the Leyland Town Board and the council with
the delivery of the project.
31. Of the three projects within this priority, two are rated green and one is rated amber.
2021-22
Quarter 1
(Apr – Jun)

Projects
Implement the community wealth building action plan

GREEN

Establish a business support programme

Amber

Deliver year 1 of the Town Deal

GREEN

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Establish a business support programme:
A bespoke programme of business support to meet the longer term needs of
businesses from across the borough as they recover from the Covid-19 crisis.
Issue:

AMBER

This project has been rated amber as business support project timelines are
aligned and dictated by the government ARG (Additional Restriction Grant)
funding. The business support project will commence once the government Covid19 business support programmes draw to a close.
In quarter one, new government guidance was released, the Covid restrictions
extended to 19th July and extensions to Restart and ARG grant payment
deadlines until 30th July have impacted on the timelines of the project.

Actions Plan What will be
done:

A draft scheme and project initiation document including ‘Phase 2’ design,
implementation and monitoring of the extended support programme are to be
presented to Cabinet for approval in quarter two. ‘Phase 2’ sets out the extended
business support programme which seeks to deliver a business grants
programme using the corporate business support budget and the ‘ARG (Additional
Restrictions Grant) Tranche 3’, as part of a single grant scheme. This will be
subject to any further changes to the Governments business support guidance
and programmes.

Key Performance Indicators
32. Of the four performance measures reported under this priority, one measure is due to be
reported this quarter and is rated green:
 % 16 -17year olds not in education or training (NEET)

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

A BOROUGH WITH:
A choice of decent,
affordable housing

Commitment to protecting
the local environment

A choice of quality
recreational activities

Achievements this quarter
33. As part of the ongoing commitment to the environment and to help tackle climate
change, the Council hosted a virtual event for ‘World Environment Day’. The Facebook
event reached 1,688 people and videos of the event content were shared on the
Council’s Facebook main page reaching a joint total of 11,500 people. The event shared
useful information on the changes we can all make to help tackle climate change as well
as activity that is happening across the borough through the council and other groups in
the community. A new cycle storage facility has been completed at Moss Side depot to
encourage staff to use more environmentally friendly means of travel. Looking forward to
next quarter, the installation of solar panels at the Civic Centre will be complete. A new
building management system will be installed within the Civic Centre to monitor all
energy consumption around the building. To encourage residents to consider their own
energy consumption, information for the affordable energy saving schemes will be
promoted on the Council website.
34. The completion of Tom Hanson House has provided nine new affordable flats. The
management of the housing has been given to the Community Gateway Association via
a lease agreement and all nine flats are fully occupied. The remaining extra care scheme
McKenzie arms sites has moved forward with contractors and professional teams
appointed to support design and scheme development. Master plan options and a cost
plan have been developed around the preferred scheme for Extra Care and Cabinet are
considering approval of the scheme. A report on the scheme and costing for the
McKenzie Arms Development will be considered by Council in quarter two.
35. Improvement to council owned leisure facilities continues with plans developed around
the decarbonisation of each leisure site. The decarbonisation plans will enable the
council to submit grant applications to central government for funding which will in turn
support the Council in meeting its commitments to the local environment and becoming
carbon neutral as well as providing good quality leisure facilities. Improvements to those
facilities will be focused in quarter two through opening of tenders for refurbishment of
the Tennis Centre car park and Leisure Centre painting and cladding.
36. Of the four projects within this priority, three are rated green and one is rated as amber.
2021-22
Quarter 1
(Jan – Mar)

Projects
Bring Worden Hall back into use

GREEN

Deliver a project to support the green agenda

GREEN

Deliver a leisure improvement project

GREEN

Commence building of affordable homes within the borough

AMBER

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Commence building of affordable homes within the borough:
This project will bring forward and deliver a number of schemes to address the
gap in the current housing market to provide quality affordable homes.

AMBER

Issue:

As a large capital project, there is a risk to the budget and financial stability of
schemes linked to supply chains and labour. There are dual impacts caused by
Brexit and Covid-19 placing pressure on supply chains and labour which in turn
has the potential to significantly increase costs.

Actions Plan What will be
done:

These economic pressures are largely outside of the council’s control and will
need to be factored into the project design and costing. The stage one tender
process is being undertaken for the McKenzie Arms site, where project costs will
be fully assessed and may require the project to be redesigned or scaled
accordingly.

Key Performance Indicators
37. Of the seven performance measures reported under this outcome, two performance
measures are due to be reported at the end of this quarter. One is rated green and one
is rated red. A full list of the performance indicators is included in Appendix 1.
The green rated measures are as below:
 27,500 Trees will be planted in the borough this year (Cumulative)
The red rated measure is as below:
 The number of people who are prevented from becoming homeless is
increased
Key Performance Indicator
The number of people who are
prevented from becoming
homeless is increased
Commentary:

Target

Comparable
Period

Quarter 1
2021/22

Symbol

Trend

Target to
Worse than
95
86
improve

Q1
2020/21
(Q1: 2020/21)
trend
There has been a decreased number of homeless preventions
this quarter compared to the same time last year. The service
has seen an increase in complex cases, where those presenting
have multiple needs.
Those with complex needs require more intensive support in
order to achieve positive outcomes in terms of prevention.
Funding has been secured for a 12 month ‘Prevention of Rough
Sleeping Co-Ordinator’ to work with those individuals with the
most complex needs. This role will work alongside the Housing
Options Team and other agencies to prevent homelessness
occurring, or where this is not possible to identify solutions and
support to assist individuals into sustainable housing.

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Key Organisational performance measures
38. At the end of quarter one, there are 12 key organisational performance measures due to
be reported. A full list of the performance indicators is included in Appendix 2.
39. Of the 12 key organisational performance measures, eight are rated as green:






% planning applications decided within 8 weeks (minor / other applications)
% of telephone calls answered within 90 seconds
% of calls abandoned before being answered in a quarter
Average days to process a new Housing Benefit claim
No. of accidents reported to Health Safety Executive for work related activity
(RIDDOR)
 Number of near miss incidents reported to Health and Safety
 The average number of working days from Disabled Facilities grant referral
received from LCC to application approved
40. Three organisational performance measures are performing below target but within
threshold:
 Percentage of Council Tax collected (Cumulative YTD)
 Percentage of Business Rates (Cumulative YTD)
 Number of households in temporary accommodation at the end of the quarter
41. Of the 12 key organisational performance measures, two are rated as red:
 Number of accidents reported to Health and Safety from work related activity
 % planning applications decided within 13 weeks (major applications)

Key Performance Indicator
Number of accidents reported
to Health and Safety from
work related activity
Commentary

Key Performance Indicator
% planning applications
decided within 13 weeks
(major applications)
Commentary

Target

Comparable
Period

Quarter 1
2021/22

Symbol

Trend

Target to
Worse than
8
15
improve

Q4 2020/21
(Q4: 2020/21)
trend
The increase in the number of accidents reported is likely a
result of the easing of lockdown restrictions from the previous
quarter to quarter one. This accompanied by the extremely good
weather encouraging the public to take advantage of the eased
restriction which will have a significant impact in the opportunity
for accidents to arise. Whilst the trend has increased from the
previous period the figures are statistically low considering the
numbers of people (staff and members of the public) covered.

Target
80%

Comparable
Period
100
(Q4:2020/21)

Quarter 1
2021/22

Symbol

Trend

75%



Worse than
Q4 2020/21

The percentage of major planning applications decided within 13
weeks has performed lower than target this period. There are a
small number of applications in this category, therefore one or
two applications being off target can impact significantly on the
percentage. These could be affected by delays to signing a

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Section 106 legal agreement associated with an application or a
deferral of a decision by the Planning Committee.
There has been a significant increase in the overall number of
planning applications over the last 12 months. The Council has
recruited a consultant for an initial four-month period to focus
and support on the processing of major applications.

Climate change and air quality

42.

The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place.

Equality and diversity
43. Equality and Diversity is embedded within the corporate strategy and how the council
acts. An equality impact assessment was undertaken as part of the corporate plan
refresh and each individual project will have its own equality impact assessment which
are being revised and reassessed during quarter three.
Risk
44. Risk registers are being completed for each project which will inform the wider risk
assessment on an ongoing basis for the corporate strategy.
45. In considering the risk to the overall corporate strategy programme, the number of green
rated projects provides a positive outlook and confidence in delivery. Proactive
management of risks around budgets and the impact of Covid recovery remain a focus of
the programme board when reviewing progress each quarter.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
46. The delivery of the Council’s Corporate Objectives are supported by the budgets set within
in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
47. There are no issues of concern from a Monitoring Officer point of view. The report provides
an overview of the council’s performance in terms of delivering the Corporate Strategy and
delivery against its corporate priorities. The report is for noting and consideration.
Background documents


Corporate Plan, approved 30th September 2020

Appendices



Appendix 1 - Performance of the Corporate Strategy Measures
Appendix 2 - Key Organisational Performance Measures

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Date:

Howard Anthony (Shared Service
Performance and Partnership Team
Leader),
Michael Johnson (Shared Service
Performance and Policy Officer)

Howard.anthony@
southribble.gov.uk,

01772
625546

13/08/2021

Michael.johnson@
southribble.gov.uk,

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1 – Performance of the Corporate Strategy Measures



Worse than target, outside
threshold

Indicator Name





Worse than target but
within threshold (5%)

Performance is better
than target

Polarity

Target

Quarter 1
2020/21

Symbol

Trend

Bigger is
better

40%

32.5%



Better than
Q4 2020/21

Smaller
is better

14.5%

10.8%



Worse than
Q1 2020/21

An Exemplary Council
At least 40% of service
requests will be received via
self-service channels
The percentage of households
living in fuel poverty will be
better than the North West
average

Thriving Communities
Number of meals provided to
school age children through
holiday hunger offer
Number of residents benefiting
from opportunities created by
the communities’ team

Smaller
is better
Bigger is
better

To be
baselined
2021/22
To be
baselined
2021/22

10823
In Quarter
1

4314

-

-

-

-

A fair local economy that works for everyone
% 16 -17year olds not in
education or training (NEET)

Smaller
is better

3.5%

3.4%

Better than
 Q1
2021/20

Good homes green spaces healthy places
27,500 Trees will be planted in
the borough this year
(Cumulative)
The number of people who are
prevented from becoming
homeless is increased

Bigger is
better
Bigger is
better

27,500
(Annual)

0

as
 Q1Same
2020/21

86

Worse than
 Q1
2020/21

2

95
(Q1:
2020/21)

1

This measure is to be baselined this year (2021/22) to establish a target and data set for future
comparison. The number of residents benefiting from opportunities created by the Communities team,
has seen a significant increase from 878 in quarter four to 4314 this quarter. This is due to the
inclusion of 3843 people who participated in the ‘Living Room Live’ virtual event.
2

There was no tree planting programmed for quarter one, the tree planting season will commence
from quarter three.

Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2 – Key Organisational Performance Measures
Indicator Name

Polarity

Target

Number of households in temporary
accommodation at the end of the quarter

Smaller
is better

Target to
improve
trend

Number of Accidents reported to Health and
Safety from work related activity

Smaller
is better

Target to
improve
trend

No. of accidents reported to Health Safety
Executive for work related activity (RIDDOR)

Smaller
is better

Number of near miss incidents reported to
Health and Safety

Bigger is
better

The average number of working days from
Disabled Facilities grant referral received
from LCC to application approved

Smaller
is better

% planning applications decided within 13
weeks (major applications)

Bigger is
better

% planning applications decided within 8
weeks (minor / other applications)

Quarter 1
2021/22

Symbol

Trend

45



Worse than
Q4 2020/21

15



Worse than
Q4 2020/21

1



Same as
Q4 2020/21

7



Better than
Q4 2020/21

149



Better than
Q4 2020/21

80%

75%



Worse than
Q4 2020/21

Bigger is
better

85%

85.7%



Better than
Q4 2020/21

% of telephone calls answered within 90
seconds

Bigger is
better

40%

71.4%



Better than
Q4 2020/21

% of calls abandoned before being answered
in a quarter

Smaller
is better

15%

9.3%



Better than
Q4 2020/21

Average days to process a new Housing
Benefit claim

Smaller
is better

19 days

15.46
days



Worse than
Q4 2020/21

Percentage of Council Tax collected
(Cumulative YTD)

Bigger is
better

29%

28.83



Worse than
Q1 2021/20

Percentage of Business Rates (Cumulative
YTD)

Bigger is
better

31%

30.96



Worse than
Q1 2021/20

Page 48

Target to
improve
trend
Target to
improve
trend
Target to
improve
trend

Agenda Item 7

Report of

Meeting

Deputy Chief Executive
(Introduced by Councillor
Paul Foster)

Cabinet

Date

15 September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

No

Workplace Strategy
Purpose of the Report
1. To present the Workplace Strategy 2021-2024 to Executive Cabinet for consideration
and approval.
2. To seek agreement to progress the Workplace Strategy.
Recommendations to Cabinet
3. That the Workplace Strategy is approved and progressed to support the future efficient
operation of the organisation.
Reasons for recommendations
4. To realise the social, economic, and environmental benefits of new ways of working in
line with the changing operating context and workforce expectations.
Other options considered and rejected
5. To revert back to pre-Covid-19 working practices. This option has been rejected based on
the opportunities presented to modernise our approach and in line with feedback from
staff.
Executive summary
6. The Workplace Strategy is the beginning of an ambitious plan and programme of works to
transform where and how the council will work over the next three years. The aim and
vision of the Workplace Strategy is to “To provide a high quality, modern, fit for purpose
workplace for all staff that enables mobility, flexibility, productivity, and collaboration across
the council whilst supporting behavioural and cultural change to adopt new ways of
working’.
7. The strategy has been developed based on the experience of working through the Covid19 pandemic, best practice, and feedback from staff. It aims to achieve flexibility and

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
efficiency while maintaining productivity and performance. It sets out the vision, priorities,
objectives, principles, and approach to developing our working places and practices for
the future. Alongside the strategy is an action plan with key workstreams and success
measures to guide implementation and achieve the strategic objectives.
8. The Workplace Strategy will support the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and interact
with other key strategies and plans including the Digital Strategy and Organisational
Development programme as critical elements to ensuring that the right technology is in
place and the workforce are enabled to operate successfully.
9. The Workplace Strategy can be seen at Appendix One
Corporate priorities
10. The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable):
An exemplary council

Thriving communities

A fair local economy that works for everyone

Good homes, green spaces, healthy places

Background to the report
11. The global pandemic and associated restrictions prompted a major change in public
behaviour with more people than ever using technology to work, socialise, shop and
access services. Our staff and customers now have different expectations and it’s
important that we change our approach to keep pace and take advantage of emerging
opportunities to modernise and improve.
12. The strategy has been developed based on research and best practice to maximise the
social, environmental, technological and economic benefits. Extensive consultation has
also taken place with staff through surveys and briefing sessions to gather feedback and
shape the strategy, indicating strong support for the proposed approach.
Summary of the strategy
13. The purpose of the Workplace Strategy is to support the Council to deliver a working
environment and working model that will best meet the needs of the organisation and our
employees. It will make the most of technology and assets as well as driving a positive
organisational culture to ensure the Council continues to provide high quality services to
residents. It will be a shared strategy that will be implemented across Chorley and South
Ribble to achieve a consistent approach, with the implementation tailored to the needs
and identities of each Council.
Vision and principles
14. The vision for the Workplace Strategy is to “To provide a high quality, modern, fit for
purpose workplace for all staff that enables mobility, flexibility, productivity, and
collaboration across the council whilst supporting behavioural and cultural change to
adopt new ways of working’.

Page 50

Agenda Item 7
15. A number of principles have been identified to ensure the success of the strategy and to
ensure we maintain the delivery of excellent services to our customers including:
 50% of our office-based workforce will be accommodated for at any one time within
a more flexible and agile office setting, with home, mobile and hybrid working
increased and encouraged based on business need.
 Staff will be available to work and respond in line with service need, whether they
are working from the office or at home. This means answering the phone and
responding to emails, attending meetings and appointments.
 Staff will maintain expected levels of individual performance, productivity and
positive working relationships with their team, service and line manager.
 Staff will be enabled to work seamlessly with the right technology and standardised
equipment.
 All services will have a minimum workplace presence on normal working days
to be managed locally.
 We will have four future working states (office/onsite worker, mobile worker, hybrid
worker and home worker) to identify different types of staff, how they will work and
the different support they may need.
 SMT will be accountable for ensuring that working practices are effective and
managers will be responsible for maintaining oversight of their teams and
services.
How we will deliver the vision
16. There are 4 key elements to the delivery of the strategy: People, Assets, Technology and
Processes
17. Each element will have its own objectives, programme of works and sub projects. Together
these elements will form the Workplace Strategy.
18. Each council will have their own separate implementation programme that reflects the
position of each organisation and progresses activity to deliver the future way of working
vision by 2024. The objectives of each element of the Workplace Strategy will be met by
the delivery of the projects as shown in in Appendix Three – Delivery and Implementation.
Outcomes and benefits
19. The strategy will deliver extensive benefits including greater efficiency, improved
customer experience, increased staff morale, better user of assets with potential for
income generation as well as environmental benefits. The outcomes framework and
approach to evaluation is included at the end of the strategy document.
Climate change and air quality
20. The work noted in this report impacts on the following areas of climate change and
sustainability targets of the Councils Green Agenda: net carbon zero by 2030, reducing

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
waste production, limiting non sustainable forms of transport, limiting, or improving air
quality.
Risk
21. It is important that staff are supported through the changes to obtain staff buy in and
achieve the desired cultural change. Organisational development and training will be
aligned to support with the change in how we work.
22. Technology is critical to ensuring the success of the strategy and future ways of working.
The Digital Strategy and ICT plan will be closely aligned to the delivery of the Workplace
Strategy to ensure a coordinated approach to implementation.
23. There will be costs associated with transforming our office sites and consolidating
buildings for commercial or regeneration opportunities to be evaluated and presented on
a case by case basis.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
24. As noted in point 23 above, as the strategy is developed further, options for delivery of the
aims and objectives within it will be brought forward for consideration; the financial
implications associated with these options, and for any proposed changes to our estate,
will be considered and evaluated on a case by case basis to ensure affordability.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
25. There are no concerns from a Monitoring Officer perspective. Many public and private
sector organisations will be similarly looking at how best they deal with the post Covid
world. Extensive consultation with employees has already taken place about this strategy.
Clearly is important that such an inclusive approach should continue as ideas and
proposals develop further.
Appendices
Appendix One – Workplace Strategy
Appendix Two – Additional Personas
Appendix Three – Delivery and Implementation

Report Author:

Email:

Simon
Charnock
– Simon.charnock@chorley.gov.uk
Transformation
Officer
(Digital)

Page 52

Telephone:

Date:

01257
515035

26/08/2021

Workplace
Strategy
2021 to 2024

“To provide a high quality, modern, fit
for purpose workplace for all staff that
enables mobility, flexibility, productivity,
and collaboration across the councils
whilst supporting behavioural and
cultural change to adopt new ways of
working’

Page 53

Introduction
The purpose of the Workplace Strategy is to support the Councils to deliver change to effectively
provide a working environment and a working model that is designed to best meet the needs of the
organisations and our employees, makes the most out of available technology and assets as well as
ensuring a positive organisational culture to ensure the Councils continue to provide high quality
services to the residents of Chorley and South Ribble.
Our Workplace Strategy aims to create attractive and inspiring work environments to support new
work styles including office/onsite, mobile, home and hybrid working, increase adaptability of space,
increase business performance, and improve staff morale. We will be looking to maximise the
benefits from our office accommodation assets through increasing space utilisation and
consolidating facilities to utilise as commercial and regeneration opportunities.
This strategy, supported by the ICT, Joint Digital Strategy, Organisational Development and
Transformation Strategy will help us to be fit for the future, and transform how both Chorley and
South Ribble Councils operate, fulfilling our promise to modernise our Councils by transforming
where and how we work in order to better serve our customers as well as improving the work and
personal life balance of our employees.

Current ways of working
Smarter working principles have been adopted in recent years and continue to be developed further.
These principles are the building blocks that were put in place to begin the transformation of how we
work to be more efficient and flexible.
Smarter working principles include:
•

Creating the right working environment, standardising offices

•

Making sure employees have the right tools and technology to fulfil their role

•

Employees encouraged and enabled to work in smarter and more efficient ways, seamlessly
across locations

•

Space based on activities rather than individuals and not based on seniority

•

Information held centrally and electronically, digitising processes

•

Reduced desk space

•

The move towards paper light offices and streamlined digital processes.

The reasons for adopting smarter working principles include:
•

Increasing flexibility for both employees and the organisations

•

Create a more professional and standardised working environment

•

Designed to improve health and wellbeing of employees

•

To ensure technology is used to its fullest extent taking advantage of available progression
in technology

•

To enable staff to access information from any location

•

To streamline and automate processes to improve how we deliver services to our customers

•

To enable business continuity

Page 54

Current ways of working statistics, including results from latest staff survey

99.9%
of computer-based staff at both Councils main
working location within an office setting.
(pre COVID-19)

3

main office locations at
Chorley Council

2

main office locations at South
Ribble Borough Council

£236k

94%
Staff engaged and
motivated at work

Net operational costs per
annum for the Civic Centre,
Leyland

£85k
Annual income through lease
of offices at Chorley Council

£100k
Net operational costs per
annum for the Union Street
building

88.5%

£63k
Annual income through lease
of offices at South Ribble

91%

Staff feel they have influence
over the way they work

Staff feel they have the
correct tools and
technology to efficiently
fulfil their role

Future working - vision and models
The period of home working in response to COVID-19 restrictions has meant that we tested out the
approach to home working and found it to be a success, with employees sustaining productivity and
service delivery, as well as staff being able to reap the benefits that home and flexible working
provides.

Page 55

A pulse survey has been carried out to assess and understand employees’ thoughts and feelings
towards home working over the last 12 months.
•
•
•
•
•

93% of employees state if there was the opportunity to work from home for some or all the
time post COVID-19, this would be something they would consider
93% of employees stated that their health and wellbeing whilst working from home was either
fair, good or very good
89% of employees stated their mental health whilst working from home was either fair, good
or very good
The main advantage of working from home was not having to commute at 58%
The main disadvantage from working from home was technology at 48%, improving
technology to support new working models forms part of the Workplace Strategy

The way we work is changing and has to change fast enough to keep pace with the current
challenging climate. We need to review our current working spaces and workplace culture and define
our requirements and needs over the next three years. There are multiple reasons for why a change
in the way we work is the right thing to do both for the councils, for our people and for the residents
we serve.

Social impact

•Working habits are changing, people are expecting to be able to work from home to achieve a
better work life balance. Employees now expect modern and flexible ways of working with
organisations offering greater flexibility to help retain top talent whilst improving staff morale.

•Consolidating our office accommodation assets provides an economic advantage in terms of
running costs, whilst allowing us to use our assets to a greater benefit. Consolidating assets should
be balanced against our need to retain a presence in the town centre as a large local employer.

Economic
impact

Environmental
impact

•Employees working at home for even half of the week reduces the emissions by 54 million tonnes
per year. There are further advantages environmentally such as reduction in use of paper and
reduced energy consumption, all of which support the Councils Green Agenda and more
sustainable ways of working.

Technological
impact

•Technology is an enabler that allows for future ways of working to be successful. With the shared
Digital and ICT strategies supporting the Workplace Strategy we are in a great place to align
technology across both Councils to ensure we are able to work seamlessly, efficiently from any
location and have the technology to do so effectively and efficiently.

Work is now seen as a thing we do, rather than a place we go. We aim to empower employees,
whenever and wherever they work. Enabling and encouraging our staff to enjoy their workspace
wherever that may be. Change in the way we work will present opportunities for greater productivity,
efficiency and improved morale and wellbeing of staff.
Our future working models will be based on the following principles and are supported by the
Workplace Strategy:
•

A quality, modern working environment that will support a range of working practices and
encourage collaborative, integrated, and cross functional activity.

Page 56

•

50% of our office-based workforce will be accommodated for at any one time within a more
flexible and agile office setting, with home, mobile and hybrid working increased and
encouraged based on business need.

•

Staff will be available to work and respond in line with service need, whether they are
working from the office or at home. This means answering the phone and responding to
emails, attending meetings and appointments.

•

Staff will maintain expected levels of individual performance, productivity and positive
working relationships with their team, service and line manager.

•

Staff will be enabled to work seamlessly with the right technology and standardised
equipment.

•

All services will have a minimum workplace presence on normal working days to be
managed locally.

•

Any variation to formal working patterns or arrangements (e.g. a non-working day,
regular childcare or permanent home worker) would need to be requested in line with
HR policies.

•

SMT will be accountable for ensuring that working practices are effective and
managers will be responsible for maintaining oversight of their teams and services.

•

We will have four future working states to identify different types of staff, how they will work
and the different support they may need.

•

A mixture of different zones within the office environment; quiet zones, hotdesking
(interactive and collaboration) zones, meeting zones and social zones, working with
services to ensure all their needs are met, focusing on future working habits rather than
previous or current working habits.

•

Staff will be enabled to work seamlessly with the right technology and standardised
equipment. as well as ensuring new modern offices have the technology to allow them
to thrive.

•

Ensure the environment for home workers is safe, suitable, and effective following the
Health and Safety (Display Screen Equipment) Regulations and the Health and Safety
(Workplace) Regulations

•

Further digitise and streamline processes that currently rely on office-based locations for
them to be completed.

•

Transformation of the way we deliver services to our customers, improving the customer
experience and making use of technology to encourage self-service and less reliance on
the more expensive channels.

•

Policies to support the transformation of the way we work, such as the home working policy
and flexible working policy which form part of the work life balance policy family.

•

Organisational development to support all staff throughout the changes, embedding the
new ways of working into the Councils culture whilst supporting managers in effective ways
to manage their teams within the new work settings.

Page 57

We have looked at the type of work that people do in the councils and have identified four working
states of the future.

Office/Onsite worker: employees whose job requires them to work in a specific location such as Primrose
Gardens, Leisure Centres, Streetscene/Neighbourhoods as well as other office based staff dependant on
service need. These workers will need to have access to appropriate tools and technology. They may have
specific hours of working and are primarily based onsite/in the office.

Mobile worker: employees who spend most of the time out of the office on the move, travelling
around the borough or working with clients and customers in their homes or properties. They will only
come into office space for meetings or a quick touchdown. They have technology avaialble to work
effectively and efficiently whilst working accross the borough.

Home worker: employees that work predominantly at home but will use the office on occasions for
meetings and collaboration with their team or other staff from other directorates. Their home
environment is suitable and safe for them and they have appropriate technology to work in this way.

Hybrid worker: employees work from an office location but use a wide variety of different workspaces in that
environment. They can also access home working and remote working from other sites and locations. Time
will be split between an office location and home based on business need. They have the technology avaialble
to them to work in this way

A day in the life of….
We anticipate that these employees will be able to work in the following types of way:
Peter works in the Transformation and Partnerships service and is a hybrid worker.
Peter lives a 45-minute commute from Chorley and South Ribble. Peter splits his time working in
the office and working at home based on the need of his service and job role, making him a
hybrid worker.
At home he has access to a Council laptop and headset as well as all the Council systems he
requires including an iPad to access Council meeting agendas and minutes.
Peter usually works at home 2 days a week saving time with him not needing to commute, as
well as this being more cost effective for him, doing this also reduces his carbon footprint. Peter
feels like this makes him more productive and less stressed not having to worry about a drive to
and from work, his mornings and end of days are much more relaxed for him, allowing him to
focus better on his work.
Peter does also work in the office at either Chorley Town Hall or South Ribble Civic Centre,
usually in a set pattern. Peter has flexibility around where he works in order to best carry out his
role.
Peter books out space in the office as and when he requires. He does not have a set desk within
the office he finds suitable space to allow him to work as he needs.
Peter communicates with his team and other colleagues across both Councils using Microsoft
Teams but does attend face to face team catch ups every 2 weeks.

Page 58

Brian works in the ICT service and is a hybrid worker.
Brian splits his working week between both Chorley and South Ribble offices and at home.
Cover is always required in the offices to support hardware issues and other tasks that cannot be
done at home.
At home Brian is still able to support staff with ICT issues through Microsoft Teams and remote
assistance in the same way he would if he were in the office. He is also able to carry out system
upgrades and software installations from home as this is all carried out on a virtual system so
there is no need to be in the office to do this. Brian prefers working at home when he needs to
concentrate and focus on a piece of work without distraction. He finds it more beneficial to do this
when working from home as there is more distraction for him when working in the office.
Brian can attend team meetings from wherever he is; at home, at South Ribble or at Chorley
using Microsoft Teams and virtual meetings rooms. This saves Brian and the rest of the ICT
team time not having to travel between locations for meetings. The team does however meet
every 2 weeks for an in-person team catch up.
Within the office the ICT team have their own office space separate from other services as the
nature of their work is often confidential and needs to be a secure space. They do not all have a
set desk as they are not often all in the office at the same time, they do however have set
workstations for certain tasks. Brian has a locker for personal belongings as well as work
equipment, as well as storage facilities for the whole service, specifically hardware.
When in the office Brian uses the social zone during his breaks, he enjoys this time as he can
catch up with colleagues across the council, it is a good vibe and a hub at lunch time

Steve works in the Neighbourhood Services team as a team leader. He is a mix between
hybrid and a mobile worker
Steve has young children under the age of 3. Being able to log in from home early for an hour
before the children wake up is a benefit to Steve. He can plan his day and complete admin tasks
at home, clocking out to sort the children out and get them off to nursery before then going into
the office, making Steve a hybrid worker.
Steve works in the office once the kids are at nursery where he completes admin tasks, however
his role requires him to do site visits throughout the day. The way Steve works makes him both a
hybrid and a mobile worker. He uses the office during the day as his base in between his sites
visits.
The processes Steve follows are mainly paper free. He has access to a council smartphone to
allow him to receive his jobs, respond to emails as well as accessing Microsoft Teams to
communicate with his team wherever he is. He does occasionally need to print paper plans
which he is able to do when he is in the office.
The flexibility Steve has, mainly being able to log in to work in the morning from home helps him
manage his workload and improves his work life balance.
Other colleagues within ground maintenance teams are slightly different to Steve, their roles are
always based out and about within the borough working on site and do have set hours. This
makes them a mix between mobile and onsite workers.

Page 59

Francesca works in the Commercial Services team between Primrose Gardens and Cotswold
Supported Housing with Tatton Gardens due to go live in March 2022.
Francesca is an office/onsite worker due to the nature of her role which is providing a front
facing service meaning she in unable to carry out duties at home.
Francesca works in the office everyday with her main base being at Primrose Gardens, however
she does sometimes work at other sites when cover is required.
Francesca has a set desk where she works daily at Primrose Gardens, however when at other
sites she uses hotdesking free space that is availble to use whilst she is providing office cover.
She works core hours Monday to Friday 9am till 5pm, however does sometimes stay later and
start earlier if needed and does also attend out of hours if there is an urgent need.
Francesca has dual screens in the office and uses Microsoft Teams to communicate with other
colleagues as well as having access to a council mobile phone. Microsoft Teams is very useful
for Francesca and the team as it means they can hold meetings virtually without having to travel
to different sites to meet in person. This saves time and is much more efficient for them, whilst
also allowing all members of the team to attend as nobody needs to stay on site for office cover.
Francesca also attends staff matters virtually meaning less time is spent travelling from Primrose
Gardens to the Town Hall whilst still being able to provide input into the meeting.
Francesca accesses the information and data she needs online as all processes are digitised
making access to information easy from a centralised place for the whole team.

Eileen works in the Customer Services team in the front office and in the contact centre.
Eileen is a hybrid worker. She works from the office on her assigned days which is based on a
rota, on these days she sees customers face to face. Customers are occasionally seen in private
areas to help maintain customer privacy.
Eileen and her colleagues also support members of the public to self-serve when in the office
using the digital access points available for the quicker tasks that can be completed online,
educating customers how to self-serve. This allows the team to spend more time on the more
complex and vulnerable residents’ cases.
On the days that Eileen is assigned to be within the contact centre, on the phones, Eileen takes
this opportunity to work from home as there is no need for her to be in the office to fulfil her role
on these days. When at home, Eileen uses a council laptop to access all the systems she needs.
Eileen has dual screens at home also which helps with efficiency, due to the nature of the role
and all the different systems Eileen requires at once, dual screens really help but maybe not
essential for everybody, however Eileen does know that not all members of the team have space
at home for dual screens.
Eileen communicates with customers through emails, the website or over the phone, using the
contact centre online solution, she can communicate effectively with customers wherever she is.
The team have a Microsoft Teams chat group so everybody can keep in touch throughout the
day and share information wherever they are to support each other which is a really important
tool for the team.

Page 60

Shannon works in the Strategic Housing team and is a home worker due to personal health
needs.
Shannon has had a neurological spinal disability since she was 16 which affects her health, with
her often needing to previously take time off work sick for long periods.
Working from home massively helps and reduces Shannon’s absences. She finds it much better
for her health working from home, she feels better mentally and physically and finds she can
manage her day better which has a positive impact on her work and productivity.
Shannon often struggles with the morning routine, getting up and into the office for 8am due to
her disability. Working at home helps as she can be flexible on the more difficult days, logging
into work later and working later to ensure she fulfils her hours and completes everything she
needs to do. Home comforts also help throughout the day as she has everything she needs at
home.
Working from home has not only improved Shannon’s health and wellbeing it also has had a
positive impact on the whole family with the whole family life improved.
Previously Shannon did work in the office, however due to her disability she was based on the
ground floor as she is unable to manage the stairs and the lift was often broken, so for safety she
based herself on the ground floor. This was a separate space to colleagues in her team, with
Shannon often feeling isolated. Working from home separate from her colleagues is no different,
she communicates with her team in the same way, using Microsoft Teams, however at home she
doesn’t feel isolated as she is working in a space, she is comfortable with.

Additional personas for other services can be seen at Appendix One

Page 61

How we will deliver the vision
Our future working vision and model should not only focus on the redevelopment and modernisation
of office buildings; our people, processes and technology also need to be considered. Therefore,
there are four key elements to the strategy and our future working model, each having their own
individual objectives, projects and programme of work that together form the Workplace Strategy
and support the Councils to adapt to new ways of working and to create an office environment and
working practices for the future whilst supporting staff along the way.

People

Processes

Workplace
strategy

Places /
Assets

Technology

People

Objectives and projects to support the workforce through transformation of the way we work. Linked
to behavioural and cultural change to support staff as well as policies to support new working models.

•
•

•
•
•

Encourage senior leaders to lead by example and fully utilise new spaces and adopt new
working practices.
Work with staff to shape working environments and models, support managers and staff
through the change and ensure benefits are documented and realised to aid cultural change.
Establish change and engagement champions to explain and reinforce new behaviours and
attitudes and utilise organisational development initiatives to do so.
Improve job satisfaction and work/personal life balance by providing greater flexibility for our
employees and ensure the models meet the workforces needs.
Ensure working environments at home are safe and suitable for employees to work.
Consult and engage with customers to help improve the customer experience and increase
of self-service with Digital Champion staff supporting customers to self-serve, educating them
on digital skills.

Page 62

Place/Assets
Objectives and projects to ensure that our assets are suitable and meet the needs of our workforce
and future working models.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop working environments that promote and facilitate a collaborative culture, encourage
integrated and cross functional activity and provide a consistent level of quality of
workspaces.
Develop the Town Hall into the main council working location at Chorley, with the creation of
different working zones and a quality, modern, well designed space fit for the future.
Review spaces within the Civic Centre, ensuring quality, modern, well designed space fit for
the future
Develop commercial and redevelopment opportunities through consolidation of Council office
accommodation assets and reduce operating costs and increase income generation
opportunities including The Lancastrian.
Relocation of and transformation of customer services delivery at Chorley Council
Collaborate with partners and local stakeholders to develop our spaces and other local
environs into office space, meeting, and conferencing space both for council and other
stakeholder use.
Ensure remote locations within the borough are set up for staff to work if required, such as
community centres etc.

Technology

We will need to ensure that technology is in place and fit for purpose to allow for new working models
to thrive as well as ensuring staff have the correct technology to do their jobs whenever and wherever
they are.

•
•
•
•
•
•

Digitise and streamline additional services such as archiving, scanning, mail, and printing.
Ensure meeting and conferencing space to have the technology to enable them to be utilised
to their full potential and explore monitoring tools such as online booking, space utilisation
and attendance recording.
Ensure all employees have the technology and tools required to efficiently carry out their role
without relying on a set location, enabling them to work anywhere with no reduction in
productivity or service delivery.
Develop self-service in the customer services area, improving the customer journey and
reducing the reliance on face to face and telephone contact, increasing automation so we
can focus more on the more complex cases and vulnerable residents.
Refresh of information security framework to reflect new ways of working.
Training for staff on technology to support and benefit home working

Page 63

Processes

New working processes to allow staff more flexibility on where and when they work for an improved
work life balance.
•
•
•
•

•
•

Development of policies and principles to support the workplace changes and the Workplace
Strategy
Embed as part of the Council DNA new working models and work as a thing we do rather
than a place we go.
Further processes to be adopted to assist with the successful transformation of working
models.
Review processes both internally, such as managing working patterns, office capacity and
automating processes, and externally such as the way front facing services are delivered.
Ensure we embed and monitor workplace behaviours such as adhering to clear desk policies
and reporting health and safety issues
Work more sustainably, responsibly and reduce our carbon footprint supporting the Councils
Green Agenda

Delivery and implementation
Each Council will have their own separate implementation programme that reflects the position of
each organisation and progresses activity to deliver the future way of working vision by 2024. The
objectives of each element of the Workplace Strategy will be met by the delivery of the projects as
shown in in Appendix 2.
Appendix 2 shows a proposed programme of works for Chorley and South Ribble Councils as well
as shared projects for both Councils.

Outcomes and monitoring
It will be important to monitor the progress of the Workplace Strategy to ensure that both councils
are meeting the objectives and outcomes that we want to achieve from this strategy.
We will implement regular monitoring of outcomes and benefit realisation sessions to ensure that
the future working models are meeting expectations, as well as ensuring the way of working is having
a positive impact on the organisations, services and employees whilst maintaining the delivery of
quality services to our residents.
Monitoring and evaluation measures will be developed for each council based on their individual
programme of work.
Quarterly reports will be fed into the reporting processes for each council, which will provide an
opportunity to recognise progress made, highlight key issues or risks, and ensure that both councils
are on track for an aligned approach.

Page 64

Outcome

Evaluation Monitoring

Enhanced employee and organisation productivity

Performance Management Data

Improved employee satisfaction, motivation morale and loyalty

Staff survey

Improved health and wellbeing of the workforce

Staff survey

Improved talent acquisition and retention

HR processes and data

Improved staff perception of the working environment within the
office setting
Increase in staff feeling they have an influence on the way they work

Staff survey

Increase in staff feeling they have the correct tools and technology to
fulfil their role
Reduction in the percentage of the workforce working within an office
setting
Increase in staff working at home and in a more hybrid way

Staff survey

Increase income stream from utilisation of assets for commercial
purposes
Reduced travel and commuting to work to reduce carbon footprint in
support of the Green Agenda
Further technological advances implemented to support new ways of
working and modern office environment
Further digitsation and streamlining of processes and automation

More efficient, effective, and improved customer experience for front
facing and customer service delivery

Page 65

Staff survey

Analysis of data from booking and
attendance technology
Staff survey
Analysis of data from booking and
attendance technology
Analysis of income stream from
lease or redevelopment of office
space
Staff survey
Data on travel and commute into
an office environment
Analysis of technological
advances implemented and their
benefits
Analysis of technological
advances implemented and their
benefits
Customer Service performance
monitoring
Customer satisfaction survey

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix One – Additional Personas
Maureen works in the Property Services team and is a mix of a hybrid and mobile worker.
Maureen and her team split their time between the office, at home and attending site visits.
She plans her week and uses the office as a base when she has site visits on certain days as
she does not live local, so this is the best option for her. She uses hotdesking space within the
office in between site visits as she does not have a set desk location, space is shared between
the team. Maureen uses social zones for her lunch breaks. When in the office Maureen uses this
time to access printer facilities to print letters, site notices and legal documents that require paper
copies as well as carrying out tasks that is more efficient utilising dual screens as she doesn’t
have the space for dual screens at home.
On days when Maureen doesn’t have any site visits, she works from home, taking advantage of
the hybrid working model, saving time on the commute into the office as well as being able to
focus better without distractions of an office environment.
Records are digitised which allows Maureen to access information wherever she is working
without the need to go in the office, however, occasionally archived paper records are required
which Maureen will plan to access during her days in the office.
Maureen and her team work together to ensure there is always cover daily in the office as they
are a reactive service that often need to attend site visits urgently, however if staff are at home
and need to mobilise they still do so if required based on business need.
Maureen and her team use Microsoft Teams to communicate with each other but do meet in
person every 2 weeks for a team catch up. These catch ups take place in different locations
either in the office, at Strawberry Fields or other Council sites. After the meeting they either
continue working where the meeting took place, go home, or attend site visits to continue with
their working day.
Anne works in the Public Protection team as part of the Communities directorate.
Anne is a mix between a hybrid and mobile worker, she generally spends half of the week at home and
half of the week in the office but does also attend site visits, she bases her working location on business
need. Most of her work can be done at home as she has dual screens available at home which makes it a
lot easier for her. Anne does acknowledge that some of the team do not have the space for dual screens at
home, so they may work in the office more often than she does if they require access to dual screens, some
of the team work just fine on a laptop, its personal preference Anne believes.
Some of the team within the service work on a rota to meet business need providing office presence within
the office for times when immediate site visits are required as the service is a reactive service, while for
other roles this is not necessary. Some of the team do not live local so for urgent site visits it is more
suitable for office cover to be provided rather than mobilising from home. If required to mobilise from home
due to demand, then the team will still do so if required.
Anne does attend planned site visits weekly; she uses an iPad and has technology available to her for
these visits. As Anne lives local, she uses either the office or home as her base on days she does have site
visits. Anne’s colleagues that do not live local but attend planned site visits, plan their week so they use the
office as a base during days they have site visits to attend. If they do not have any visits, they take the
opportunity to work from home to carry out admin and other tasks that are able to be carried out at home.
Anne books out space in the office as and when she requires. She does not have a set desk within the
office, she finds suitable space to allow her to work as he needs. On occasions Anne needs quiet space to
concentrate on a piece of work, she often does this at home, or she books out quiet space within the office
for time to focus.
Anne and her team use Microsoft Teams and mobile phones to communicate with each other. In person
meetings are not essential, however are useful to have occasionally. The team book out meeting space and
collaboration space so they can meet and work together within the office at least once every 2 weeks.

Page 67

Leanne works in the Democratic Services team and is a hybrid worker, spending 2 or 3
days a week in the office at either Chorley or South Ribble and the rest at home based on
business need. Some weeks she works in the office more than others, no week is the same.
Leanne attends evening meetings, she plans her week, working in the office on the days that
she has an evening meeting to attend. As these are member meetings, they take place in
person at either Chorley or South Ribble offices. As Leanne does attend evening meetings her
days are often more flexible and does work in the evenings occasionally. This improves
Leanne’s work life balance, allowing her to do the school drop off and pick up, working around
the family lifestyle which includes often working in the evenings even when there is not a late
meeting.
As the team supports members, there is always cover in the office with a minimum of 1
member of staff being in to support members. The team are in a specific location within the
office to ensure members can find the team when required.
When working in the office Leanne works in the set team location, she has a locker for
personal and work items. During lunch breaks Leanne uses the social zone to relax away from
her workstation.
Leanne attends team meetings with staff across shared services with staff being in different
locations using Microsoft Teams. However, every 2 weeks the team do get together for a
meeting in person at either Chorley or South Ribble offices.

Colin works in the Finance team and is a hybrid worker.
Colin works from the office more than he works at home, this is because he does not have
space at home for dual screens which are an integral piece of technology for him as he feels he
works much more efficiently using dual screens than a single laptop screen. He works in the
office when he knows his tasks will require dual screens, but he also works at home when he
can complete tasks where dual screens are not essential. He enjoys being able to split time
between both as and when needed.
Colin’s colleagues are not in the office as much as he is, they are mainly based at home as
they have space for dual screens at home and find there is less distraction in a home
environment than there is in the office setting. They do however come into the office based on
business need and for face to face meetings when required.
The finance team have their own office space due to the nature of the role, there is secure
financial information and secure data that needs to be kept for audit purposes. Most records
can be accessed electronically from anywhere, however on occasions paper files are required.
Within the office nobody in the team has their own set desk, the team hotdesk, finding availble
space when they are in the office. At the end of each day they clean their workstation for
hygiene safety reasons.
Colin and the team catch up together at the office every few weeks in person using the meeting
areas. Some staff stay in the office on these days, others go home depending how long their
commute is.
Colin takes breaks in the social zone when he is in the office, he uses this space to switch off,
he usually watches TV whilst on his breaks.

Page 68

Charles works in the Investment and Skills team and is a hybrid worker
Charles splits his week between the office and at home, working at home 3 days a week. He
works in the office when face to face meetings are needed and for collaboration and support
/learning sessions with his team. He will go in the office as and when required but does spend
most of the week at home in general.
Charles meets businesses on an appointment basis most of the time in a coffee shop as this is a
more relaxed environment and feels the meetings are better this way. Sometimes he does meet
at the business premises or virtually wherever he is.
When attending meetings virtually with businesses when he is in the office he uses private
spaces within the meeting area as this allows him to ensure conversations with businesses are
private and also prevents him from being disturbed by others or disturbing other colleagues
within the office space.
Charles lives local but it often takes 40 minutes to get to work due to congestion on the roads.
When he is working in the office, he logs into work from home in the morning first until 10am
before going into the office. By doing this he avoids the congested times and it is more efficient
and productive for him this way.
Charles has an iPad and laptop and can access all the information he needs electronically.
Charles finds working at home much more efficient, there are no distractions, he can concentrate
and prioritise his schedule much better allowing him to manage his workload more effectively.
His home environment feels more comfortable, he finds home comforts are better for his health
and wellbeing and personal comfort. He goes for a walk before work or at lunch time, feels
refreshed afterwards and adds clarity to his thought process, he would not do this when in the
office setting.
3 days at home

Frank works in the Communities team; Frank’s team are a mix of hybrid and mobile workers; the roles of
the service differ so they work accordingly to suit their role.
The Community Development and Social Prescribing teams spend their weeks out and about across the
borough, they either use the office or home as a base depending on their location making them a mobile
worker. They have devices to allow them to access emails and calls wherever they are. They occasionally
nip into the community centres to log in and work, depending on their schedule. They often work on their
own so also have access to a solo protect device for safety.
The hybrid workers in the service book space in the office as and when they require, they do not have a
set desk each, just space to share as a service. They do also spend some of the time working from home.
They have access to the technology and tools to work and communicate wherever they are working.
The team do meet in the office occasionally and have 1-1’s in the office where private meeting areas are
utilised. These 1-1’s do sometimes take place over MS Teams.
Some of the team do work in the office more often than others as they live alone and feel they are socially
isolated so prefer to work from the office environment. As the team deal with vulnerable people and
emotional work this sometimes has an impact on personal mental health, anxiety, and resilience, so they
find it better to have support of colleagues available to them if needed, this is a benefit to them, so they do
prefer the office location but can work from home if they need to do so.
The service have a contained space available within the office, due to emotional and private nature of
phone calls, private space is needed, not only to maintain privacy of customers, but also so other
colleagues in the office are not affected by any calls they may hear taking place.
Frank attends regular hospital appointments during the day which does take a couple of hours. When he
needs to attend these appointments, he makes up for time working in the evening at home, which is a
benefit to Frank as he is able to keep on top of his work around his appointments.

Page 69

Gemma works in the Council Tax team in the Customer Services back-office.
Gemma spends most of the time working from home but does occasionally go into the office for training
and support days as well as catch up with colleagues. Gemma is a hybrid worker.
Gemma finds working from home improves her work life balance, as well as being more productive and
efficient when working. Gemma’s commute to the office is 60 minutes which means she is rushing in the
morning to get ready for work and into the office in time to deliver the service which is required during
the hour’s customers expect. Working from home allows Gemma to take a walk before work and be
ready for the day ahead, this makes her more relaxed and more focused increasing her productivity and
morale. Gemma’s working day is also more flexible, rather than having to be out of the office for 5pm
each day, she can work a little later if needed or log on in the evenings to finish off pieces of work to fit in
with her day.
Working from home allows Gemma to concentrate much better than she can in a noisy office with lots of
distractions so finds that she is able to focus much better.
Gemma communicates with customers using email and Microsoft Teams, the same way she would if
she were in an office setting. Gemma also uses the same tools to communicate with her team. In
addition, the team use Microsoft Team chat to arrange lunches and ensure there is cover to take phone
calls while members of the team have a break.
Gemma occasionally does go into the office for training and to catch up with members of her team.
When working in the office Gemma utilises the quiet zones as she finds it much easier without
distraction to carry out her role.
Gemma has access to a council laptop, headset, and dual screens at home, as she would in the office,
this helps Gemma as dual screens are an essential to allow her to carry out her role effectively. Gemma
acknowledges that for some staff, space at home may not allow for this which may be a hindrance.

David works in works in the Planning Team and is a hybrid worker
David works some of the week at home and some of the week in the office based on business need and
as his role requires. David finds working from home is more suitable for him when he needs quiet time
to write reports or needs to really focus without any distractions. He does sometimes use quiet spaces
in the office to do this but does prefer doing this at home.
David is aware that different colleagues may work slightly different to him and would be more office
based as this is a better option for them and they feel more productive working in the office setting.
David and the team do work in the office as a minimum 2 days a week. This is important for them as it
allows time to share ideas, experience, and recommendations to facilitate appropriate decision making
on planning applications and new developments. There is a mix of experience in the team, so it is
helpful for them to be in the office on a mentoring and learning capacity. Being in the office also allows
time for training and transferring of skills to ensure there is a consistent approach to recommendations
and decision making on planning cases. The team can do this over MS Teams, however, find there is
more quality when in the office. The team is not fully paperless and often need to print large plans which
they can do when in the office, however generally most processes are paperless.
David does site visits throughout the week, either using the office or home as a base on these days as
he lives local, some of the team use the office as base on these days as they do not live local.
David has access to laptop at home and a large screen as space allows so he can easily view
documents and plans he needs. He also has access to technology to allow him to carry out his site
visits efficiently.
Desks within the office for the team are large enough to work on large plans. He uses the social zone
for lunch and meeting spaces with space for planning documents to discuss with the team.

Page 70

Margaret works in the Planning Policy team and is a home worker.
Margaret is able to fulfil her role completely from home; however, she does go in the office for
meetings or to print documents when needed. Margaret enjoys working from home and finds
there is less distractions.
Margaret does catch up with colleagues often in person, but this does not necessarily take place
in an office setting. They often catch up in coffee shops, at the Park or other locations across the
borough.
Margaret communicates with colleagues using Microsoft Teams and emails and has a WhatsApp
group for the team for informal conversations. The team use their personal phones for this
WhatsApp group as it is not really work related. They use Microsoft Teams for work related
chats.
Margaret communicates with customers via email.
At home Margaret has a laptop and a large screen which helps to view maps. She also has a
headset and an iPad for when carrying out site visits, but these are only occasionally.
Margaret has care needs for her child and partner due to disabilities. Flexibility of working from
home allows her to better manage this whilst still being able to work effectively. Occasionally her
child may be sent home from school meaning Margaret would need to leave the office, at home
she can continue working, catching up in the evenings where needed. This makes Margaret less
stressed and finds it improves her mental health and work life balance.

Ken works in the Environmental Health team and is a mix between a hybrid and mobile
worker.
Ken splits his time between the office, at home and attending site visits based on business need.
Ken’s commute into the office is stressful, busy, and often has many delays due to traffic. Ken is
a single parent to 2 children who have lots of hobbies in the evenings.
Ken plans his week so that his site visits and face to face meetings are on the same days, on
these days he uses the office as his base, when on-site visits he accesses his jobs using his
council mobile and uses hotdesking space in the office in the morning and to complete admin
tasks at the end of the day. He also uses the social zones for his lunch.
Hybrid working has many advantages for Ken. He is less stressed as he does not have a
stressful commute every day. He can get his children ready and off to school and can log into
start work earlier when at home than he would if he had to commute into the office after school
drop off. He finds this helps his to focus and helps to be more productive, whilst also reducing
the cost of childcare.
Working from home also allows Ken to work more flexibly. When in the office he would have to
leave the office early to get back home to take his children to their hobby classes, however
working from home allows Ken to continue working later as he can easily get the children to their
classes without a long commute home first. This not only improves Ken’s work life balance he
also finds it has an added benefit to his children’s lives also, it is especially difficult for Ken as a
single parent.
Ken communicates with colleagues using Microsoft Teams. He also attends multi agency
meetings with partners from the borough and from other boroughs. Being able to attend these
meetings from anywhere is a huge benefit to not just Ken, but other members of staff from the
council and other agencies. The meetings often take place in locations in other boroughs, being
able to use Microsoft Teams to attend saves Ken and others travel time to and from the meeting.
Ken does sometimes attend in person, however having the option to attend remotely helps
massively saving up to an hour not having to travel.

Page 71

Mike is a Director and is a hybrid worker. Mike spreads his time working at both Chorley and
South Ribble Council offices as and when required based on the need of his role.
Mike does not have a set office at each Council location, he has a shared space with other
Directors that he can use when in the office as well as a shared meeting space, this is due to the
fact that not all Directors will be in the same location at any one time so a set office space for
each director is not required.
Mike utilises the quiet zone within the office when he needs to be able to concentrate on a piece
of work without distraction, alternatively he is able to do this at home should that be the best
option for him, depending on his day. He may work into the evenings at home if required.
Mike occasionally sits within the interaction/hotdesking/collaboration zone within the offices to
allow for interaction and collaboration with his service and to be more visible to his colleagues.
Mike attends meetings at both Councils either in person or utilising Microsoft Teams, joining the
meeting from wherever he is, this saves Mike time travelling between Councils to attend
meetings in person when it is not essential. Meeting spaces are set up for video conferencing so
attendees can join the meeting from wherever they are, saving time again on them having to
travel to the meeting location.
Mike has access to technology to allow him to work in a hybrid way including access to Council
systems at home, a headset as well as an iPad to access agendas and minutes of meetings.

Page 72

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix Two
Delivery and implementation
Each Council will have their own separate implementation programme that reflects the position
of each organisation and progresses activity to deliver the future way of working vision by
2024. The objectives of each element of the Workplace Strategy will be met by the delivery of
the projects as shown below,
The table below shows a proposed programme of works for Chorley and South Ribble Council
and shared projects for both Councils.
Project
Transition
recovery.

period

during

COVID-19

Council
Chorley and South
Ribble Councils

Element of strategy
People

Timescale
March to July
2021

Place/Assets
Review of current state and plan for the
transition post COVID-19.

Processes

Redevelopment of the Town Hall offices

Chorley Council

Technology
Place/Assets

2023

Redevelopment of other local environs

Chorley Council

Place/Assets

2023

Consolidation of Union Street and
transformation into commercial asset
Consolidation of Bengal Street offices for
use for regeneration projects.
Relocation of customer services front
facing location and transformation of the
customer services delivery model

Chorley Council

Place/Assets

2022

Chorley Council

Place/Assets

2023

Chorley Council

Place/Assets

2022

Technology
People

Development of policies to support the
Workplace Strategy

Chorley and South
Ribble Councils

Identify and implement technological
requirements and further ICT advances
as part of the Workplace strategy
Organisational Development, culture,
and behavioural change to support with
the change in the way we work
Implementation of new ways of working

Chorley and South
Ribble Councils

Manager development

Chorley and South
Ribble Councils
South Ribble
Council

Transformation of the office space at the
Civic Centre, creating attractive, modern
working spaces fit for the future

Chorley and South
Ribble Councils
Chorley and South
Ribble Councils

Page 75

Processes
Processes

2022

People
Technology

2022-2024

Processes
People

2022

People

2022

Processes
People

2022

Place/Assets

2023

Page 76

Agenda Item 8

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director of Finance and
Section 151 Officer
(Introduced by Cabinet
Member (Finance,
Property and Assets))

Cabinet

15th September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

Yes

Savings or expenditure amounting to greater
than £100,000

Significant impact on 2 or more council
wards

2021/22 Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring Report – position as
at 31st July 2021
Purpose of the Report
1. This report sets out the revenue and reserves forecast for the Council as at 31st July 2021.
Recommendations to Cabinet
2. Note the forecast position for revenue and reserves as at 31st July 2021.
3. Note the virements to the revenue budget made during the period, as detailed in Appendix
2 of the report.
Executive summary
4. There is a forecast break-even position against the budget at 31st July 2021 as detailed in
Appendix 1.
5. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy reported that working balances were to be
maintained at existing levels due to the financial risks facing the Council. The balance at
the last reporting period (2020/21 Outturn) was £4.141m. The forecast level of general
fund balances as at 31st March 2022 remains at £4.141m.
Reasons for Recommendations
6. To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.

Page 77

Agenda Item 8
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
7. None
Corporate priorities
8.

The report relates to the following corporate priorities:
An exemplary council

Thriving communities

A fair local economy that works for
everyone

Good homes, green spaces, healthy
places

Background to the report
9. The net revenue budget for 2021/22 is £14.480m.
10. Appendix 2 provides further information about the specific earmarked reserves and
provisions available for use throughout 2021/22.
11. The Council’s approved revenue budget for 2021/21 included target savings of £190k,
comprising £150k in staffing turnover, and £40k from the expansion of shared services.
Section A: Current Forecast Position – Revenue
12. The forecast expenditure based on the position as at 31st July 2021 is £14.480m against
the Council’s budgets of £14.480m. Details of the forecast revenue outturn position are
shown in Appendix 1 and reserves are outlined in Appendix 2. The main variances, by
directorate, are detailed below.

Page 78

Agenda Item 8
Variations from Budget

Directorate

Commercial & Property
Communities
Customer & Digital
Governance
Planning & Development
Policy
Budgets Not In Directorates
Covid-19
Total Expenditure
Funding
Council Tax
Lower Tier Support Grant
New Homes Bonus
Reserves
Retained Business Rates
Section 31 Government Grants
Total Funding

Budget

Forecast

£'000
1,708
1,621
6,289
1,796
620
1,882
564
14,480

£'000
1,864
1,459
6,197
1,787
588
1,860
929
(204)
14,480

Budget
£'000
(8,599)
(100)
(363)
(124)
(3,829)
(1,465)
(14,480)

Forecast
£'000
(8,599)
(100)
(363)
(124)
(3,829)
(1,465)
(14,480)

Variance
(Under)/Over
spend
£'000
156
(162)
(92)
(9)
(32)
(22)
365
(204)
0
Variance
£'000
0

13. Commercial and Property
 The forecast is based on a reduced income of £91k from investment properties, the
market and the business and conference centre.
 Additional staffing costs of £47k have been included in the projections, in respect of
support required in the facilities and estates teams.
 Leisure Services is forecast to be in line with budget based on performance in the first
4 months of the year.
14. Communities
 There are staffing underspends of £71k due to vacancies.
 Additional grant funding relating to Sports Coaching of £22k, and to Homelessness of
£51k, is shown as a surplus because there are not yet definitive plans for spending.
 Details of the forecast position for the Community Hubs are shown in Appendix 5.
15. Customer and Digital
 Customer Services and Revenues and Benefits currently has a forecasted underspend
of £150k on staffing costs due to vacant posts; a service review is in progress.
 Parks and Neighbourhoods is underspent on staffing by £47k due to vacancies
 This is offset by reduced income from court summonses of £95k and parking income
of £93k.
 Garden waste income has a surplus of £87k but trade waste income is down by £21k.

Page 79

Agenda Item 8
16. Governance
 There are no significant variances to note at this point in the year.
17. Planning and Development
 There is an underspend on staffing in Planning of £39k due to vacancies. This is offset
by additional staffing costs in building control of £7k.
18. Policy
 There is an underspend of £15k in the Events team due to the slight delay in recruiting
to the new staffing structure; it had been assumed that this would be fully staffed from
1st April.
19. Budgets Not In Directorates
 Additional pension contributions of £386k will be required due to an understatement in
the prepayment to the Lancashire Pension Fund in April 2020. The council prepaid 3
years of contributions, covering 20/21, 21/22 and 22/23. The amount paid was
calculated on an assumed value of pensionable pay. Under the terms of the
prepayment, the Council is required to pay any significant shortfalls that arise during
the 3 year period rather than such shortfalls being accounted for in any revised
contribution rate calculated at the next triennial actuarial valuation. The issue has
arisen due to an understatement of pension costs during the budget setting process in
2020/21 which then fed through to 2021/22 – this is in relation to the pension
prepayment as the employer pension contributions budget and costs have been
accounted for based on the prepayment, which was based on estimated costs, rather
than the actual costs incurred. This has resulted in an in-year overspend of £264k on
pensions.
 The revenue budget includes a savings target of £150k for staffing turnover and £40k
for expanding shared services. The full savings of £150k have already been achieved
and these have been deducted from directorate staffing budgets; £75k to Communities
and £75k to Customer and Digital. The £40k savings target in respect of shared
services will be identified following reviews currently in progress.
 Parish precepts are £44k higher than budget due to the fact that their value was not
available when the budget was set.
 Net Interest Receivable/Payable is forecast to be £18k overspent for 2021/22.
20. Covid-19
Additional income of £204k is anticipated, predominantly from the government’s Covid-19
Fees and Charges Compensation Scheme to offset losses of income incurred in the first
quarter of 2021/22.
21. Funding – No variations in funding are forecasted at this stage.

Section B: General Fund Resources and Balances
22. With regard to working balances, and as detailed in Appendix 3 to the report, the Council
holds a £4.1m General Fund balance to manage budget risks not covered by earmarked
reserves or provisions. The forecast outturn for 2021/22 shows a projected General Fund
closing balance of £4.141m as detailed below.

Page 80

Agenda Item 8
Summary of Movement in General Reserves
st

General Fund Reserves as at 1 April 2021

£m
(4.141)

Forecast revenue budget (surplus) / deficit
Forecast General Reserve Closing Balance 2021/22

0.000
(4.141)

23. Appendix 3 provides further information about the specific earmarked reserves and
provisions available used throughout 2021/22.
24. Taking account of the adjustments highlighted in Appendix 3, the forecasted level of
Earmarked reserves held for discretionary use by the Council at 31st March 2022 is
£9.711m compared to a balance of £23.007m at 31st March 2021.
Summary of Movement in Earmarked Reserves
st

Earmarked Reserves as at 1 April 2021
Use of revenue reserves for capital financing
Release of S31 grant received in 2020/21 (and held in
reserves) in respect of Business Rates reliefs stipulated by
the government during – this offsets the resulting deficit
brought forward on the Collection Fund
Forecast use of other earmarked reserves
Forecast Earmarked Reserves Closing Balance 2021/22

£m
(23.007)
6.772
4.890
1.634
(9.711)

25. Amounts within the forecast use of other earmarked reserves include;
 £306k from the leisure reserve in relation to one-off costs involved in bringing leisure
services in-house from 1st April 2021 and transferring to a local authority trading
company later in the year.
 £242k from the Section 106 reserve relating to a specific section 106 agreement that
requires the receipt to be paid over to City Deal.
 £236k not required from the business rates retention reserve to be moved for additional
pension contributions required in relation to 2020/21.
 £177k to fund costs associated with the local plan.
 £150k from the business grants reserve to contribute to the wider programme of support
to businesses, using Covid Additional Restrictions Grant funding.
 £113k of funding carried forward to be used for stock condition surveys for the Councils
properties.
 The remainder of the movements are various, smaller adjustments related to revenue
spending.

Climate change and air quality
26.

The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place.

Equality and diversity
27. None

Page 81

Agenda Item 8
Risk
28. Please summarise the key risks identified in any risk assessments.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
29. The financial implications are contained within this report.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
30. None
Background documents
31. There are no background papers to this report.
Appendices
Appendix 1 – Revenue 2021/22 - position as at 31st July 2021
Appendix 2 – Revenue Budget Movements as at 31st July 2021
Appendix 3 – 2021/22 Reserves Programme position as at 31st July 2021
Appendix 4 – Staffing Vacancies as at 31st July 2021
Appendix 5 – Community Hubs position as at 31st July 2021
Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Neil Halton (Principal
Management Accountant),
James McNulty (Senior
Management Accountant)

neil.halton@southribble.gov.uk,
01772
james.mcnulty@southribble.gov.uk 625625

Page 82

Date:
20/08/21

APPENDIX 1
Revenue 2021/22 - position as at 31st July 2021

Directorate

Original
Budget

Department / Section

Forecast
Outturn
Budget at
Variance
based on
31st July
(Under) /
position at
2021
Overspend
31st July
2021
12
(9)
(20)
117
120
3
(33)
(25)
8
1,438
1,442
4
216
194
(22)
(42)
141
183
1,708
1,864
156

Commercial &
Property

Community Centres
Departmental Costs
Housing Delivery
Leisure
Projects & Development
Property Services
Commercial & Property Total

12
117
(33)
1,438
216
(42)
1,708

Community Involvement
Departmental Costs
Environmental Health
Homelessness
Housing Support
Communities Total

625
44
549
350
128
1,695

580
82
549
350
60
1,621

539
47
543
301
28
1,459

(41)
(35)
(6)
(49)
(32)
(162)

Customer Services and Revenue and Benefits 753
Departmental Costs
120
Information Services
1,600
Parks and Neighbourhoods
2,469
Transport
336
Waste Management
1,047
Customer & Digital Total
6,325

678
120
1,638
2,469
336
1,047
6,289

622
113
1,639
2,422
410
991
6,197

(56)
(7)
0
(47)
74
(56)
(92)

785
228
303
481
1,796

0
772
212
306
497
1,787

0
(12)
(16)
3
16
(9)

Communities

Customer &
Digital

Governance

Civic Services
Democratic Services
Departmental Costs
Legal
Shared Assurance Services

785
228
300
481
1,794

Governance Total
Building Control
City Deal
Departmental Costs
Investment and Skills
Licensing
Planning
Planning & Development Total

(56)
(129)
112
408
4
320
659

Planning &
Development

Policy

Policy Total

Communications & Visitor Economy
Corporate
Shared Financial Services
Transformation & Partnerships

343
193
673
675
1,885

Page 83

(56)
(129)
44
408
4
348
620
343
193
671
675
1,882

(49)
(127)
51
396
8
309
588
317
200
679
665
1,860

7
2
7
(12)
4
(40)
(31)
(26)
6
8
(11)
(22)

Directorate

Department / Section

Original
Budget

Covid-19
Debt Repayment
Interest
Parish Precepts
Pensions Costs
Savings Targets
Budgets Not In Directorates Total

298
(118)
434
(11)
(190)
414

Budgets Not In
Directorates

Funding

Funding Total

Council Tax
Lower Tier Support Grant
New Homes Bonus
Reserves
Retained Business Rates
Section 31 Government Grants

(8,599)
(100)
(363)
(124)
(3,829)
(1,465)
(14,480)

Grand Total

-

Page 84

Forecast
Outturn
Budget at
Variance
based on
31st July
(Under) /
position at
2021
Overspend
31st July
2021
(204)
(204)
298
298
(118)
(100)
18
434
478
44
(11)
253
264
(40)
40
564
725
161
(8,599)
(100)
(363)
(124)
(3,829)
(1,465)
(14,480)
-

(8,599)
(100)
(363)
(124)
(3,829)
(1,465)
(14,480)
-

-

APPENDIX 2
Revenue Budget Movements as at 31st July 2021

Directorate
Budget approved by Council 26th Feb 2021

Commercial &
Communities
Property
1,708

Transfers between directorates
Realignment of shared services budgets

Allocation of savings targets
Staffing turnover

Customer &
Digital

Governance

1,695

6,325

1,794

1

38

3

(75)

(75)

Planning &
Development
659
(40)

Budgets Not In
Directorates

Policy
1,885

414

Funding
(14,480)

(3)

TOTAL
-

150

-

Carry forward of grants and other budgets to 2022/23
-

Page 85

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked reserves
Defibrillators net expenditure
Defibrillators contribution from New Burdens reserve

25
(25)

25
(25)
-

Transfers (to) / from General Fund reserves
Other budget adjustments
Revised Budget as at 31st July 2021

1,708

1,621

6,289

1,796

620

1,882

564

(14,480)

-

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3
2021/22 Reserves Programme position as at 31st July 2021

Reserves

Balance at 1st
April 2021
£'000

Page 87

General Fund Balance

(4,141)

Corporate Reserves
Borough Investment account
Brexit Preparation Grant
Business rates retention reserve
Business rates temporary surplus to be repaid
Capital Funding Reserve
City Deal
Climate Emergency
Community Wealth Building
Covid Commitments Reserve
Covid Recovery Fund
Income Equalisation Reserve
Income Investment Reserve
New Burdens Grant
Pensions Reserve
Restructure costs
Section 106 Revenue Reserve
Shared Services Implementation
Towns Fund
Transformation Reserve

(4,404)
(36)
(3,144)
(5,244)
(1,851)
(1,851)
(250)
(150)
(654)
(675)
(150)
(250)
(99)
(200)
(242)
(48)
(76)
(230)

Forecasted Movements
Movement
Transfers
Transfers To
Between
From
Reserves
Reserves
Reserves
£'000
£'000
£'000
-

-

3,823
236
4,890
1,851

(236)

25
236
70
242
76
230

-

Forecasted
Balance 31st
March 2022
£'000
(4,141)

(581)
(36)
(2,908)
(354)
(1,851)
(250)
(150)
(654)
(675)
(150)
(250)
(74)
(130)
(48)
-

Reserves

Balance at 1st
April 2021
£'000

Page 88

Commercial and Property
Asset Maintenance Reserve
Extra Care
Leisure Reserve
Leisure Strategy
Repairs and Maintenance Fund
Stock condition surveys

(400)
(50)
(546)
(15)
(500)
(113)

Communities
Community Hubs Reserve
Energy efficiency
Homelessness prevention grants
Housing Standards Enforcement
Mental Health for Young People
Sports Development

(109)
(27)
(144)
(32)
(50)
(297)

Customer and Digital
Grounds Maintenance
IT underspend non-staffing
Office supplies underspend

Forecasted Movements
Movement
Transfers
Transfers To
Between
From
Reserves
Reserves
Reserves
£'000
£'000
£'000
250
50
306

(150)
(240)
(15)
-

500
113

(109)
(144)
(32)
(50)
(275)

27

22

(7)
(88)
(36)

7
88
36

Governance
Borough council elections
Internal Audit

(160)
(14)

14

Planning and Development
Apprentice factory website
Business Grants
Business Support
Economic Development
Housing needs survey

(15)
(150)
(44)
(20)
(80)

Forecasted
Balance 31st
March 2022
£'000

-

(160)
-

150

(20)

(15)
(44)
(20)
(100)

Reserves

Local Plans
Policy
Communications
Credit Union
Events
Music Festival
Performance Reward Grant
Policy and Performance

Balance at 1st
April 2021
£'000
(267)

Forecasted Movements
Movement
Transfers
Transfers To
Between
From
Reserves
Reserves
Reserves
£'000
£'000
£'000
177

(31)
(149)
(48)
(48)
(11)
(2)

Forecasted
Balance 31st
March 2022
£'000
(91)

(31)
(83)
(29)
(11)
-

66
19
48
2

Page 89

Total Earmarked Reserves

(23,007)

-

13,316

(20)

(9,711)

Total Reserves - General and Earmarked

(27,149)

-

13,316

(20)

(13,852)

This page is intentionally left blank

Staffing Vacancies at 31st July 2021
Post Description

Shared
Services

Communities
Community Involvement
Officer

Appendix 4

Notes

Vacant since June 2021
Vacant through 2020/21. The budget is funding a
shared Environmental Health Manager post and a
new Communities Team Leader post.

Assistant Director of
Housing & Property
Environmental Health
Technician
Customer and Digital
Assistant Director of
Neighbourhoods
Neighbourhood Team
Operative
HGV Mechanic

Became vacant in July 2021

Vacant since May 2021
Vacant since May 2020
Vacant since January 2021

Governance
Executive Officer

Y

Became vacant in July 2021

Planning & Development
Head of Licensing
Environmental Health
Assistant (Apprentice)

Vacant throughout 2020/21
Will be recruited to in the next round of apprentices.
These will be recruited to in the next round of
apprentices
Vacant since April 2021. Will be recruited to once
work on Covid business grants is complete.
Vacant since May 2021

Apprentice (3 FTE)
Business Development
Officer
Strategic Housing Officer
Policy
Museum Curator

Y

Vacant since May 2020 but the budget has been used
to fund a temporary resource.

Posts where the post-holder has been seconded to a Covid-specific role
Post Description
Senior Community
Involvement Officer
Gateway Officer (3 FTE)
Neighbourhood Officer
(0.5 FTE)
Neighbourhood Team
Operative
Arborist

Shared
Services

Notes

Y
Some of these posts may be filled temporarily until the
post holder returns.

Page 91

Posts held pending review
Post Description

Shared
Services

Notes

Commercial and Property
Facilities Team Leader

Vacant since March 2021. The budget is funding
temporary arrangement in the facilities and estates
teams. A review of the services is planned.

Leisure Partnership
Development Manager

Vacant since April 2021
Vacant throughout 2020/21. The budget is funding
temporary arrangements in the facilities and estates
teams.
As above

Graphic Designer
(0.51 FTE)
Engineering Technician
Communities
Sports Development Officer
(0.86 FTE)
Project Co-ordinator (Sports
Development)
Wellbeing Development
Officer
Customer and Digital

A review of staffing across Sports Development is
currently taking place. There are various temporary
arrangements in place using different allocation grant
funding.

Benefits Assessor

Y

Visiting Officer

Y

Revenues Assistant
Revenues and Benefits
Officer
Clerical Assistant

Y

Technical Support Analyst
Senior Network Support
Analyst
LLPG Officer

Y

Security Support Officer

Y

A shared services review of the Revenues and
Benefits team is ongoing

Y
Y

Y

A shared services review of IT is ongoing

Y

Notes:
FTE stands for Full Time Equivalent and is used for part-time posts to show a comparison against a
full-time post.

Page 92

APPENDIX 5
Community Hubs Position as at 31st July 2021

Community Hub
Bamber Bridge, Lostock Hall
& Walton-le-Dale
Eastern Parishes

Brought
Forward
Balance 21/22

Allocation
21/22

Boost Fund
Forecast
Total Funding
Allocations
Spend 21/22

Forecast
Balance
Remaining

Page 93

(33,098)

(5,500)

(7,250)

(45,848)

12,108

(33,740)

(9,784)

(2,000)

(6,307)

(18,091)

7,337

(10,754)

Leyland & Farington

(25,151)

(9,000)

(5,825)

(39,976)

7,533

(32,443)

Penwortham

(11,729)

(5,000)

(1,920)

(18,649)

4,211

(14,438)

(4,655)

(3,500)

0

(8,155)

500

(7,655)

(25,000)

(25,000)

21,302

(28,698)

0

(28,698)

(109,417)

(50,000)

0

(159,417)

31,689

(127,728)

Western Parishes
Boost Fund
Total

£7,686 was spent on Hoole Parish Hall as part of the Western Parishes hub, but this was funded by a section 106 receipt
and so is not included in the figures above

This page is intentionally left blank

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director of Finance and
Section 151 Officer
(Introduced by Cabinet
Member (Finance,
Property and Assets))

Cabinet

15th September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

Yes

Savings or expenditure amounting to greater
than £100,000

Significant impact on 2 or more council
wards

2021/22 Corporate Capital Programme and Balance Sheet
Monitoring Report – position as at 31st July 2021
Purpose of the Report
1. This report outlines the overall financial position of the Council in respect of the capital
programme as at 31st July 2021, highlighting key issues and explaining key variances over
the first 4 months of the year, and provides an overview of various elements of the
Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31st July 2021.
Recommendations to Cabinet
2. To approve the revised capital programme as attached at Appendix A which reflects all
amendments to the programme that have been approved in the 4 months to 31st July 2021,
as detailed in paragraph 11.
3. To approve the following variation to the programme, which has been included in
Appendix B.
a) £130k increase to the vehicle replacement programme
All other approvals are within existing delegated limits as detailed in paragraph 11.
4. To note the position in the Balance Sheet Monitoring section of the report in respect of
cash, investment and loan balances, and debtors as at 31st July 2021.
Reasons for Recommendations
5. To ensure the Council’s Capital Programme is monitored effectively.

Page 95

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
6. None
Corporate priorities
7.

The report relates to the following corporate priorities:
An exemplary council

Thriving communities

A fair local economy that works for
everyone

Good homes, green spaces, healthy
places

Background
8. The capital budget for 2021/22 was set at £15.814m in February 2021. It was increased
following approval of the outturn to £21.380m.
Section A: Capital Programme
Key Issues
9. The total cost of the Council’s capital investment programme for 2021/22 has increased
from £21.380m, as approved by Cabinet in the 2020/21 Capital Outturn Report on 16th
June 2021, to £22.081m at 31st July 2021; this includes the variations noted in this report.
A summary of the total costs of the programme, and the funding of this, is detailed at
Appendix A.
10. The net variation of £0.701m is detailed by scheme in Appendix B. The net variation
includes three types of changes; those variations approved since the previous budget
report, i.e. the 2020/21 Capital Outturn report, variations requested in this report at point
3, and variations in respect of the reprofiling of budgets within the existing programme.
11. Budget variations approved in the first four months of the year are shown in the table below
and resulted in an increase of £0.790m to the capital programme.

Page 96

Increase /
Increase /
(Reduction) (Reduction)
Scheme
2021/22
2022/23
£’000
£’000
Good homes, green spaces and healthy places
Green Infrastructure
(10)
unallocated
Bridleway in western
81
Leyland

Approved by

Date
approved

EMD

31st July 2021

EMD

31st July 2021

Worden Park infrastructure
and landscaping

(82)

-

Council

21st July 2021

Worden Hall refurbishment

745

-

Council

21st July 2021

Open Spaces – Bent Lane

139

-

Council

21st July 2021

(389)

-

Cabinet

16th June 2021

275

-

Cabinet

16th June 2021

(45)

-

Council

21st July 2021

1

-

EMD

19th May 2021

3

-

EMD

19th May 2021

28
45

-

EMD
EMD

19th May 2021
19th May 2021

Sports Pitch Hub
Council Leisure Facilities
(other than leisure centres)
An exemplary council
Corporate Buildings
Civic Centre Building
Management System
Civic Centre Hot Water
System
Civic Centre LED Lighting
Civic Centre Solar Panels

12. Further variations of £0.130m are requested as detailed in the major variations section of
the report, in paragraphs 26 below
13. Slippage and re-profiling of budgets between 2021/22 and 2022/23, during the first four
months of the year, totals £0.219m as detailed on the individual schemes in Appendix B.
14. As at 31st July 2021 the capital expenditure across the programme was £1.882m
representing 8.5% of the current, revised projected capital spend for the year.
15. A capital receipt of £70k has been received in relation to insurance money for a damaged
road sweeper. This will be used to fund the cost of replacing the vehicle. No further capital
receipts are forecasted for 2021/22.

Page 97

Major Variations in the 2021/22 Capital Programme in the 4 months to 31st July 2021
Good Homes, Green Spaces and Healthy Places
16. The ‘Bridleway in western Leyland’ is a new scheme with £71k funding from external
contributions and S106 and £10k from the green infrastructure budget. The project will
provide a 2.1km section of new bridleway which will create a new loop around western
Leyland connecting with the existing bridleway network.
17. Four projects in Worden Park have been reprofiled to 2022/23; Craft Units - Windows and
Security Grills, Farmyard Cottages - Heating, Sewerage pumping station, infrastructure
and landscaping. This is to avoid interference with the works to be carried out on the
refurbishment of Worden Hall.
18. Approval has been given for an increase in the Worden Hall Refurbishment budget of
£745k, which comprised £81.5k transferred from the Worden Park infrastructure and
landscaping budget, £45k transferred from the Corporate Buildings budget , £250k funding
from the asset maintenance reserve, £118.5k contributions from revenue repairs and
maintenance budgets and £250k CIL funding to cover the contingency element of the
budget.
19. The Bent Lane Open Space budget has an approved increase of £139k to cover the costs
of decontamination works.
20. The Sports Pitch Hub has an approved decrease in the scheme budget of £389k. Approval
was given to utilise this reduction to create a budget of £275k for works to leisure facilities,
other than the leisure centres, such as pavilions and playing pitches.
A Fair Economy that works for everyone
21. The Leyland Train Station Ticket Office project budget of £60k has been reprofiled to
2022/23. The project will be incorporated into the wider Leyland Town Deal.
Thriving Communities
22. No variations to note in the period.
An Exemplary Council
23. £150k of the IT capital budget has been allocated to the Network switching and wireless
infrastructure project. The project will upgrade and unify the network to include access
points for improved Wi-Fi coverage. This project is being done in conjunction with Chorley
Council with a total budget of £300k shared equally. The other IT projects already included
in the programme, and the use of the remaining unallocated budget, are under review. A
joint digital strategy for South Ribble and Chorley Councils will realign these budgets
accordingly.
24. As noted above, £45k was transferred from the Corporate Buildings to the Worden Hall
budget.
25. The budgets for four projects relating to decarbonisation works in the Civic Centre have
been either adjusted or created following approval in an Executive Member Decision. The
total budget for the projects is £145k which is all grant funded.

Page 98

26. The forecast for the Vehicle Replacement Programme has increased by £130k due to two
additional replacement vehicles being required; a sweeper which was damaged in a traffic
accident and a waste collection vehicle that was damaged by a fire. Insurance proceeds
of £70k, which will be treated as a capital receipt, has been received. It is requested to
increase the Vehicle Replacement budget by £130k to reflect the increased costs and fund
this with the £70k capital receipt and £60k with potential borrowing if required.
Section B: Balance Sheet
Overview
27. Strong balance sheet management assists in the effective use and control over the
Council’s asset and liabilities. Key assets comprise of the Council’s tangible fixed assets,
debtors, investments and bank balances. Key liabilities include long and short-term
borrowing, creditors and reserves.
Non-current Assets
28. Tangible non-current assets include property, plant and equipment held by the Council for
use in the production or supply of goods and services, for rental to others or for
administrative purposes. One fifth of all assets are re-valued every year, and annual
reviews are undertaken to establish whether any impairment or other adjustments need to
be applied. New assets and enhancements to existing assets are managed through the
Capital Programme as reported in Appendices A and B.
Borrowing and Investments
29. Long-term borrowing requirements flow from the capital programme. Regular dialogue and
meetings take place between the Director of Finance, her staff and the Council’s
independent Treasury Consultants, Link Treasury Services, and options for optimising
treasury management activities are actively reviewed.
30. Both short and long-term borrowing interest rates were at low levels at the end of the
period, having remained stable over the course of the first few months of the year. Interest
rates on investments have remained negligible throughout the period. It is projected that
debt interest payable will be nil compared to a budget of £83k as a result of expected
borrowing not being required due to the timing of schemes within the capital programme,
and due to positive cash balances. Interest receivable on cash and investments is
forecasted to be £100k compared to a budget of £200k due to interest rates being lower
than those estimated at budget setting.

Interest and Investment Income
Debt Interest Payable
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
TOTAL

Original Budget
2021/22
£’000
(200)
83
298
181

31. The current borrowing and investment position is as follows;

Page 99

Forecast as at 31st
July 2021/22
£’000
(100)
0
298
198

Short term borrowing
Long term borrowing
Cash Balance
Total Borrowing
Investments made by the Council

As at 31th July 2021
Nil
Nil
17.533
Nil
£30m

As at 31th July 2020
Nil
Nil
16.700m
Nil
£32m

Debtors
32. The council has a corporate debt policy, as well as other specific policies for the
management of debt in the key areas of council tax, business rates, and housing benefit
overpayments. The table below summarises the collection performance of the various
debts, and the total outstanding debt in the respective areas at 31st July 2021. The figures
for the same point in time in the last financial year are not available and so for the purposes
of comparison, the corresponding level of debt at 31st March 2021 is shown.

Council Tax
Expected Council Tax 21/22
Current year balance outstanding
Previous years balance outstanding
Total Council Tax balance outstanding
Collection Rates
Business Rates
Expected Business Rates 21/22
Current year balance outstanding
Previous year balance outstanding
Total Business Rates balance outstanding
Collection Rates
Housing Benefit
Overpayment balances outstanding
Sundry Debtors
Balance outstanding

Position as at
31st July 2021
£’000

Position as at
31st March 2021
£’000

73,798
43,151
4,930
48,082
38.05%

69,675
2,149
3,266
5,415
96.80%

31,374
19,692
1,830
21,522
35.93%

24,821
1,285
744
2,030
95.02%

918

976

1,360

604

33.

Business Rates collection can fluctuate month on month but collection is currently broadly
in line with expectations. Expected Business Rates for 2021/22 are much higher
compared to those for last year due to the Covid reliefs that were applied in 2020/21
which are no longer applicable in 2021/22.

34.

For debts relating to Housing Benefit and Sundry Debtors, in line with accounting
standards and practice, the Council holds a provision for bad debt.

35.

In respect of the figures above, the Council’s share represents 11.7% of Council tax
Income and 17.8% of Business Rates Income.

Climate change and air quality
36.

The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place.

Page 100

Equality and diversity
37. None
Risk
38. Any risks are addressed in the body of the report.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
39. The financial implications are contained within this report.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
40. There are no concerns with this report from a Monitoring Officer perspective.
Background documents
41. The information contained within the report is in line with the Capital Strategy and the
Three Year Budget Forecast within the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-24, as
approved by Council in February 2021.
Appendices
Appendix A – 2021/22 Capital Programme
Appendix B – 2021/22 Capital Programme Scheme Variations

Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Neil Halton (Principal
Management Accountant),
James McNulty (Senior
Management Accountant)

neil.halton@southribble.gov.uk,
01772
james.mcnulty@southribble.gov.uk 625625

Page 101

Date:
20/08/21

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

Capital Programme 2021/22 - Position as at 31st July 2021
Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Slippage and
Programme
reprofiling of
2021/22
budget
Approved by
(to)/from
Cabinet Jun
future years
2021
£'000

£'000

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Slippage and
Programme
reprofiling of
2022/23
budgets
Approved by
(to)/from
Cabinet Jun
2021/22
2021
£'000

£'000

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

COSTS

Page 103

Good homes, green spaces and healthy places
A fair economy that works for everyone
Thriving communities

10,338
2,200
350

11,424
6,207
369

(159)
(60)
-

759
-

12,024
6,147
369

36,170
2,000
750

36,217
2,000
750

159
60
-

-

36,376
2,060
750

An exemplary council
Total Forecast Expenditure

2,926
15,814

3,380
21,380

(219)

161
920

3,541
22,081

1,444
40,364

1,444
40,411

219

-

1,444
40,630

1,027
213

145
1,267
324

145
1,267
324

1,364
-

1,364
-

-

1,364
-

-

83

83

-

-

-

-

1,240
1,450
1,321
500
146
3,417
150
30
1,700
355
8,922
15,814

750
2,568
3,823
1,850
500
230
6,403
250
82
1,851
644
9,582
21,380

816
750
3,385
250
3,823
1,850
119
500
230
6,772
70
500
132
119
1,851
590
8,663
22,081

1,364
600
600
3,075
2,453
73
32,798
40,364

1,364
581
581
3,075
2,496
81
32,815
40,411

76
144
219

1,364
581
581
3,075
2,496
156
32,958
40,630

RESOURCES
Decarbonisation Grant
Disabled Facilities Grants
Lottery Funding
One Public Estate - Land Release Funding
Sport England
Town Deal
Government Grants
Asset Maintenance
Borough Investment Fund
Capital Funding Reserve
Carry Forward from prior years
Repairs and Maintenance Reserve
Transformation Reserve
Reserves
Capital Receipts
CIL
External Contributions
Revenue Contributions
Section 106 - Affordable
Section 106 - Other
Unsupported Borrowing
Total Forecast Resources

816
-

816
250

119

-

(76)
(144)
(219)

369
70
250
50
119
21
(775)
920

-

-

-

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

2021/22 Capital Programme - Scheme Variations as 31st July 2021

Scheme Name

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budget
(to)/from
future years

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budgets
(to)/from
2021/22

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Good homes, green spaces and healthy places
Green Infrastructure
Green Infrastructure unallocated

189

165

Green Link - Penwortham Holme to Howick

150

Leyland Loop
Bridleway in western Leyland
Green Infrastructure Total

(10)

Page 105

155

400

400

-

400

250

250

-

-

-

-

100
439

131
546

131
81
616

400

400

-

400

Arboretum landscaping

-

30

30

-

-

-

-

Craft Units Windows and Security Grills

-

40

-

-

-

40

40

Farmyard Cottages Windows and rendering

-

50

50

-

-

-

-

Farmyard Cottages - Heating
Ice House front façade
Sewerage pumping station and sceptic
tanks
Shaw Brook weirs and banking
Shaw Wood footpaths
Walled garden pot house - replace the
building frame and base walls
Worden Park fountain

-

50
10

(50)

10

-

-

50
-

50
-

20

40

(20)

20

-

-

20

20

-

-

-

40
33

40
33

-

40
33

50

50

50

50

50

-

50

80

80

80

-

-

-

-

120

120

-

312

312

39

351

1,450
1,720

1,450
1,920

2,195
2,435

600
1,035

598
1,033

149

598
1,181

-

81
71

-

Worden Park

Worden Park infrastructure and landscaping
Worden Hall refurbishment
Worden Park Total

(40)

(39)

(82)

(149)

745
664

-

Scheme Name

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budget
(to)/from
future years

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budgets
(to)/from
2021/22

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Other Parks and Open Spaces

Page 106

Hurst Grange Park drainage
Hurst Grange Park Paths
Hurst Grange Coach House Phase 2
Open Spaces - Bent Lane
Open Spaces - Mounsey Road
Other Parks - Footpaths (Fossdale Moss,
Priory, Valley Road)
Playground - Haig Avenue
Playground - Hurst Grange
Playground - Bellis Way
Playground - Bent Lane

25
40
433
50

25
40
543
61
50

25
40
543
200
25

-

-

25

25

45

45

45

-

-

-

-

175
35
10
175

175
22
175

175
22
175

-

-

-

-

Playground - The Holme, Bamber Bridge

175

175

175

50

50

-

50

Playground - Moss Side Village Green

125

125

125

50

50

-

50

75

75

75

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

100

100

-

100

53
1,416

56
1,567

40
1,665

48
60
308

56
60
316

16
41

71
60
356

Playground - Birch Avenue, Penwortham
Playground - Margaret Road, Penwortham
A tree for every resident
Withy Grove Park
Other Parks and Open Spaces Total

139
(25)

(16)
(41)

139

-

Scheme Name

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budget
(to)/from
future years

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budgets
(to)/from
2021/22

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Sports and Leisure
King George V Playing Fields, Higher Walton
King George V Playing Fields, Higher Walton
Additional works
Leisure Facility
Leisure Centre refurbishments
Lostock Hall Football Facility (St Gerard's)

Page 107

Sport Pitch Hub
Council Leisure Facilities other than Leisure
Centres
Sports and Leisure Total

-

19

19

-

-

-

-

-

-

25

25

-

500

500

530

18,988
1,600

18,988
1,600

-

145

145

-

-

-

-

3,200

3,189

2,800

-

-

-

-

-

-

275

-

-

-

-

3,700

3,853

3,769

20,613

20,613

1,700

1,700

1,700

453

496

-

496

-

164

164

-

-

-

-

1,027
200
39
-

1,267
200
39
70

1,267
200
39
70

1,364
9,800
-

1,364
9,800
-

-

1,364
9,800
-

98

98

98

196

196

-

196

3,064

3,538

-

3,538

2,000
13,813

2,000
13,856

-

-

2,000
13,856

10,338

11,424

759

24,048

36,170

36,217

159

-

72,753

30

(389)
275
30

(114)

-

(30)

(30)

25
18,988
1,570

-

20,583

Housing
Affordable Housing - former McKenzie
Arms, Bamber Bridge
Affordable Housing - Pearson House, Station
Road, Bamber Bridge
Disabled Facilities Grants
Extra Care scheme
Empty Homes grants
Next Steps Accom - Purchase 2 houses
Private Sector home improvement grants
Sumpter Horse Site
Housing Total
Good homes, green spaces and healthy places

(159)

Scheme Name

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budget
(to)/from
future years

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budgets
(to)/from
2021/22

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

A fair economy that works for everyone
Car Park resurfacing, Ryefield Avenue,
Penwortham
Church Road, Bamber Bridge
Leyland Train Station Ticket Office
Acquisitions Quinn St
Masterplanning & Regen - Leyland

40

40

40

-

-

-

-

40
45
2,000

40
60
1,123
2,000

40
1,123
2,000

-

-

60
-

60
-

-

50

50

2,000

2,000

-

2,000

75
-

75
45
2,774

75
45
2,774

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,200

6,207

6,147

2,000

2,000

60

2,060

250

250

250

250

250

-

250

Kingsfold Community Centre Improvements

-

-

-

150

150

-

150

Neighbourhood Improvements
St Mary's, Penwortham - Churchyard wall
repairs
Thriving communities

-

-

-

350

350

-

350

100

119

119

-

-

-

-

350

369

369

750

750

-

262

262

112

400

400

-

400

35

35

35

-

-

-

-

-

2

2

-

-

-

-

Masterplanning & Regen - Penwortham

Page 108

New Longton Regeneration
Parking Meters replacements
Town Deal RIBA Stage 3
Town Deal A Town Centre Transformation
Town Deal B Market Regeneration
Town Deal C The Base2
A fair economy that works for everyone

(60)

(60)

-

-

Thriving communities
Leisure Local

-

-

-

750

An exemplary council
Information Technology Programme
IT Unallocated Funding
Civic Centre conference centre hearing loop
Capita Software Upgrade (c/f)

(150)

Idox (c/f)

-

37

37

Capital
Programme
2022/23 and
Future Years
Approved by
Finance
Council Feb
2021
£'000
-

Single Sign On and Calendar Integration

-

24

24

5
35
-

5
17
35
3

-

-

337

420

150
50

Scheme Name

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved at
Finance
Council Feb
2021

Capital
Programme
2021/22
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budget
(to)/from
future years

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Capital
Programme
2022/23
Approved by
Cabinet Jun
2021

Slippage and
reprofiling of
budgets
(to)/from
2021/22

Variations

Revised
Capital
Programme as
at 31st July
2021

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5
17
35
3

-

-

-

-

150

150

-

-

-

-

-

420

400

400

-

24
115
50

(45)

24
70
50

400
100

400
100

-

400
100

-

24

1

25

-

-

-

-

50
150
-

45
50
150
135
16

3
28
45

3
73
45
50
150
135
16

-

-

-

-

Vehicles and Plant replacement programme

2,189

2,351

130

2,481

544

544

-

544

An exemplary council

2,926

3,380

161

3,541

1,444

1,444

-

-

1,444

15,814

21,380

920

22,081

40,364

40,411

219

-

40,630

Help Desk System
Front to Back Office Automation
Tablet refresh (agile working)
Mobile phone upgrade
Network switching and wireless
infrastructure
IT Programme Total

-

-

400

Page 109

Other non-ICT projects
Air Quality Monitors
Corporate Buildings
Corporate Buildings - Civic Centre
Civic Centre Building Management System
Civic Centre Hot Water System
Civic Centre LED Lighting
Civic Centre Solar Panels
Civic Centre 3rd Floor
Civic Centre New Entrance
Fire Safety - Civic, Depot, Kingsfold
Fire Doors at Kingsfold

Total

(219)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Report of

Meeting

Director of Commercial
(Introduced by Cabinet
Member (Finance,
Property and Assets))

Cabinet

Date

15 September 2021

Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

Yes

Savings or expenditure amounting to greater
than £100,000

Significant impact on 2 or more council wards

Land Transfer at Vernon Carus
Purpose of the Report
1. This report is about taking forward the ambitions of the Council’s Leisure Facilities
Strategy which has the key ambition of developing local Sport and Community hubs
across the Borough as a means of widening access to Leisure Facilities and promoting
the concept of Leisure Local.
2. This report also builds on a report taken to Cabinet on 20th June 2020 which gave
permission for Officers to commence negotiations on the transfer of the land the
Vernon Carus Site. This new report is now seeking a final decision on agreeing a
transfer of land at the Vernon Carus Sports Club, Factory Lane, Penwortham and
Penwortham Reservoir (see Appendix A - Plan of sites) to South Ribble Borough
Council from Lane End Developments Construction Ltd.
3. This report also brings forward the associated finances around the proposal. As part
of the deal there will be a sum of £500,000 plus a sum of £150,000 paid to the Council
for the upkeep of the land plus the reservoir.
4. To bring forward the draft Master Plan commissioned for the overall Vernon Carus site.
5. To put forward a proposed refurbishment scheme for the Vernon Carus Sports Club
site following the Land Transfer.

Page 111

Agenda Item 9
Recommendations to Cabinet
6. That Cabinet approves the transfer of the land and reservoir to South Ribble Borough
Council and the receipt of the sum of £500,000
7. That Cabinet approves the principles of the outline Master Plan. Further reports will come
back through Cabinet and Council around the phasing of delivery and funding options for
the component parts.
8. That Cabinet approves the funding of £150,000 plus a £25,000 contingency for the
refurbishment of the existing Sports Club and Changing Rooms as phase 1A of the prosed
Master Plan. The £150,000 is to be funded from s106 and £25,000 from the new Leisure
Local budget.
Recommendations to Council
9. That Council puts in place a revenue budget funded from the £500,000 receipt to cover
ongoing reservoir running costs which should last 25 years (based on £20,000pa).
Reason for recommendations
10. The Transfer of the land in question is linked to a wider Housing development being driven
by Trafford Housing Trust. The transfer of the site to the Council is an opportunity to take
forward the new concept of Leisure Local as put forward in the Leisure Facilities Strategy
adopted by the Council in October 2020.
11. Strategically, the Council has adopted a new Leisure Facilities Strategy through Cabinet
This highlights a an ambition to develop a leisure and community hubs across the borough
as part of the concept of Leisure local. .

Other options considered and rejected
12. The Council could choose not to accept the transfer of the land to South Ribble Borough
Council. This would represent a missed opportunity in terms of developing a local Sports
and Community Hub in-line with the objectives of the Leisure Facilities Strategy.

Corporate priorities
13. The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable):
An exemplary council

Thriving communities x

A fair local economy that works for
everyone x

Good homes, green spaces, healthy places x

Page 112

Agenda Item 9

Background to the report
14. In October 2020 Cabinet adopted a new Leisure Facilities Strategy. The new Strategy
promotes the increase in access for all to local Leisure Facilities across the Borough. This
includes the Council’s existing Leisure Centres but also promotes the concept of Leisure
Local which seeks to develop leisure opportunities and access in local areas and
communities across the Borough. Whilst the original concept of the Vernon Carus land
transfer was linked to a planning application the realisation of this land transfer and the
proposed improvements to the Sports Club facilities is now more about promoting the aims
of the Leisure Facilities Strategy and the concept of Leisure Local.
15. The Report builds on a previous Cabinet decision made on 24th June 2020 which agreed
to progress negotiations for the transfer of the Vernon Carus land to the Council.

16. The Penwortham Mills site was allocated for development as site H under policy D1 in the
adopted South Ribble Local Plan of 2015. The site covers around 24 hectares and was
identified for the development of around 475 dwellings. The Local Plan requires that the
site be developed in a comprehensive manner and to be accessed from the new Cross
Borough Link Road.
17. The site was originally subject to a planning application by Bovis Homes which was
approved in December 2015 for 385 homes (07/2014/0190/ORM). Subsequently a further
application was granted on appeal to allow access to the development site from Leyland
Lane via the Sumpter Horse Public House site.

18. Bovis Homes have subsequently relinquished their interest in the site and Trafford Housing
Trust (THT), a registered provider, are now taking the site forward.

19. Trafford Housing Trust have now submitted a planning application. The planning
application is currently being processed for residential development of the Vernon Carus
site extending from Factory Lane in the North to link with the Cawsey to the South.
20. The application also includes a Lidl convenience store directly accessed off the Cawsey.
The same applicant also has a concurrent application for residential development of the
former Sumpter Horse site off Leyland Road. These applications would attract the need
for significant areas of Open Space as set out in Local Plan policy which for a development
of the size envisaged would be very significant.
21. The open space can be provided either on-site or off-site by virtue of a commuted sum or
a combination of the two. In this case, the Vernon Carus Sports Club and the reservoir
within the site are being offered to South Ribble Borough Council with associated
commuted sums to meet an agreed final viability position with regard to Public Open
Space. This is subject to a successful Planning application which has been submitted by
Trafford Housing Trust and is pending. Such detail would be presented to the Planning
Committee for determination.

Page 113

Agenda Item 9
22. The transfer of land to the north of Factory Lane extends to 4.6 hectares (11.42 acres) and
includes the Vernon Carus Sports and Social Club House together with recreational land
comprising of football and cricket pitches, a bowling green; pavilion/changing facilities a
boxing/fitness gym and several surfaced car parks
23. This site is bounded to the north by further playing fields; to the east by a disused railway
line (now a nature reserve/cycle path route); to the south by Factory Lane and to the west
by Cardinal Newman College land and buildings.

24. The Lake Wood reservoir (Penwortham Reservoir) covers a surface area of 2.33 hectares
(5.76 acres) and completed recommended improvement works in 2020 the cost of which
was funded by Lane End Developments Construction Ltd.
25. To formulate a vison for the Vernon Carus site which will come under Council ownership
a Master Plan has been commissioned which has looked at medium and long-term options
for the site to be delivered on a phased basis
26. The Council has now received the draft Master Plan attached to this report as appendix B.
The Master Plan recommends that as a medium-term option a refurbishment of the site
should take place to:
a. Firstly, protect the asset for the Council and to ensure the site is fully safe and
compliant
b. Secondly to refurbish the existing facilities to improve the experience of users
using the site
c. Thirdly to enhance and expand facilities available on site to increase the level
of usage to wider sections of the Community notably young people and to drive
up income to ensure the long-term sustainability of the site.
The Proposal
27. This report is proposing a transfer of land at the Vernon Carus Sports Club, Factory Lane,
Penwortham and Penwortham Reservoir (see attached Plan of sites) to South Ribble
Borough Council from Lane End Developments Construction Ltd.
28. There will be no purchase price. However, as part of the deal there will be a sum of
£500,000 plus a sum of £150,000 as s106 money paid to the Council for the upkeep of the
land plus the reservoir.
29. The Transfer of the land will assist the Council with its Leisure Local concept enhancing
existing recreational facilities and offering further new sporting uses and ventures.
30. The transfer of the land will create an opportunity to further develop recreational sporting
activities with neighbouring landowners and businesses.
31. The transfer of the land will create an opportunity to further develop recreational sporting
activities with neighbouring landowners and businesses.
32. The final proposal is to develop and take forward a refurbishment scheme for the Vernon
Carus Sports Club site ,.The first phase is to include refurbishment of the existing Sports
Club House and Changing Rooms up to a value of £150,000 funded from the s106 money

Page 114

Agenda Item 9
with a £25,000 contingency sum to be funded from the budget available for Leisure local
schemes across the Borough approved within the Council’s Capital programme.
Risk
33. The main risk associated with this proposal is if the money put in place for the upkeep of
the site is not sufficient in the long-term. As a Council we could have held out on the
prospect of getting more money from Lane End Developments Construction Ltd. However,
this could have jeopardised the deal which would go against the ambitions and objectives
of the Council.
34. Annual expenditure costs will be incurred to maintain the reservoir, its perimeter earth-fill
embankments and its immediate surrounding land. Depending on the reservoir
redevelopment options this has been estimated at between £7,000 and £20,000 per
annum.
35. The site is a former industrial site and there exists the potential for the site to be
contaminated. A post-demolition Ground Investigation Survey of the former Mill site was
carried out in May 2020 and concluded that the proposed adjoining Phase 3 residential
site had only minor contamination issues. Future development of the transferred site, in
any form, will require a similar investigation and potential remediation of the site.
36. A survey was carried out by Dams and Reservoirs Ltd in 2018 and all recommended
improvement works to the reservoir, its dam and spillway which were completed in early
2020. These works reduced the likelihood of failure of the reservoir’s dam to a very small
1 in 10,000-year event. In any such flood, there could be localised flooding of properties
but no loss of life. Insurance indemnity cover will be put in place to deal with such an
eventuality. These works brought the reservoir up to a satisfactory standard meeting
legislative requirement.
37. Annual inspections of the reservoir will be required, and a 10-year survey carried out to
comply with The Reservoirs Act 1975. Any remedial or improvement works highlighted
would need to be undertaken to maintain compliance with the legislation. The next 10-year
survey will not fall due until 2028.
38. There is a narrow strip of land forming the access road into the Vernon Carus land that is
not registered with The Land Registry. This land will also be taken by the Council and an
indemnity policy put in place to protect against future claims to Title.

Master Plan
39. The attached Master Plan catches the Council’s aspirations to develop a multi-functional
sports village at Vernon Carus, building on the amenities that already exist on the site.
40. The Master Plan proposes a phased approach. The first phase will be a refurbishment of
the existing Club House and Changing Rooms. This will address safety issues within both
buildings and enable the Club to generate revenue and be more sustainable.
41. It is intended that the scheme of refurbishment will last a period of years until such a time
that the existing Club House and Changing Rooms can be replaced with a new build
facility.
42. Future phases of the Master Plan include:

Page 115

Agenda Item 9






the creation/upgrade of existing parking facilities;
a new structure for the Bowling Club;
a new structure for the Boxing/Fitness Gym;
an improved BMX track, and;
additional playing facilities.

43. The Master Plan also shows potential for a 4G playing pitch on adjoining Cardinal Newman
College land (this would be subject to agreement with the land owner).
44. It is intended that the refurbishment of the existing Club House and Changing Rooms is
undertaken as a first phase and that officers will develop a proposal around further phasing
funding to come back to members for decision.
Equality and diversity
45. The transfer of the reservoir will support the ambitions of the Council around Green links
which are about creating new cycle and pedestrian links. The council will be able to
connect the Reservoir into the wider network of cycle and pedestrian links.
Climate change and air quality
46. There are no direct air quality implications from the transfer of the land.

Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
47. Under the current CIL charging schedule such a development would be liable for CIL at a
rate of zero pounds per sqm meaning no additional liability to the Council. The risks are
as identified in the report and the budget of £20k per annum will be funded from the £500k
receipt and monitored via the usual budget monitoring reports. The capital works identified
will be an increase in the programme of £150k funded by the S.106 receipt and a transfer
of £25k from the existing, approved, Leisure Local budget.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
48. Should members feel that this is an offer which they wish to accept the appropriate legal
agreements will be drafted. The risks in relation to the proposal are properly presented in
the report.
Background documents
There are no background papers to this report.
Appendices
Appendix A: The plan of the site
Appendix B Draft Master Plan for the Vernon Carus Site
Mark Lester
Director of Commercial

Page 116

Agenda Item 9
Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Neil Anderson, Tony neil.anderson@southribble.gov.uk,
01772
Hutchinson (Principal tony.hutchinson@southribble.gov.uk 625540
Estates Surveyor)

Page 117

Date:
September
2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Lancashire Map
Author:

´

0

0

Date Created: 16/07/2021

0.045

0.09

0.1

0.18

0.2

0.27

0.36 mi

0.4
0.6 km
© Cr own copy right [an d d ata base r ig hts ] 202 1 OS 1000 23320

Page 119

Map Scale: 1:5,000
Map Centre: 354,025 427,330

This page is intentionally left blank

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Page 121

Vernon Carus Master Plan
Zones & Phases
South Ribble Borough Council
August 2021

Architecture
Inspiring Built
Interior Design
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
Masterplanning
July 2021
Environments

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Contents

Page 122

1.0

Sports Club

1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6

Phase 1 – Existing Sports Club
Phase 2 – Car Parking, Access and External Facilities
Phase 3 - MUGA
Phase 4 – Boxing Facility
Phase 5 – Bowls Facilities
Phase 6 – New Sports Pavilion

2.0

Reservoir Zone

2.1

Phase 7 - Reservoir Facilities

3.0

Sports Fields Zone

3.1

Phase 8 – 3G Pitch Facility

4.0

Financial Analysis

5.0

Planning Policies

Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

0.0 Zoning Plan
0.1 - Ownership Boundaries

SPORTS FIELDS
SPORTS FIELDS
SAFEGUARDED LAND

Page 123

SPORTS CLUB

HOUSING LAND

RESERVOIR

KEY
Trafford Housing Trust (land leased by sports club)

Trafford Housing Trust (land to be transferred to SRBC)

Trafford Housing Trust (land to be transferred to SRBC)

Private ownership (residential)

Private school ownership

Site boundary

Trafford Housing Trust (land with planning consent)

Vernon Carus Sports Club

Safeguarded land

N

Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Page 124

1.0
Sports Club
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.1 - PHASE 1 – Existing Sports Club
PHASE 1 KEY
Option 1A - Refurbishment works
Existing Sports Club and scoring
box refurbished
Option 1B - Refurbishment works
and new build extensions
Refurbishment works to the
existing buildings with a rear
extension and a link block
connecting to the scoring box to
provide an increase in the bar /
dining area and the addition of a
multi-use space.

Page 125

Footbridge
Score
Box

Stream

Sports Club

Upper Farm

Factory Lane

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.2 - PHASE 2 – Car Parking, Access and External Facilities

PHASE 2 KEY
Option 2A - Existing Car Parks
Upgrade the condition of the
surface and parking space
delineation
Option 2B - Parking Area A
Tidy existing ground surface and
delineate 20 car parking spaces
(inc. 2 accessible spaces).
Potential to relocate Sports Club
parking should an extension be
the preferred (Option 1B)

BMX

Page 126

Option 2C - Parking Area B
Area identified to provide
approximately 22 car parking
spaces

Garden
Score
Box

Option 2D - BMX Track
New BMX track routed within
the existing shape of the ground

Sports Club

Option 2E - Garden / Picnic area
/ Additional Carparking New
footpath and picnic area with
the opportunity to invite schools
to create designs and ideas for
the layout and design of this
space. Potential for additional
carparking subject to planning. A
new bridge may be required for
vehicle access

Bowls Green

40 Spaces retained
(approx.)
47 Spaces
retained (approx.)

Parking A

2F Upgrade existing footpaths

DP

Upper Farm

2G New footpaths
30 Spaces
retained (approx.)

Vehicle drop off point

Parking B
DP

Vehicle route
Footbridge

Factory Lane

N

Stream
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.3 - PHASE 3 – MUGA
PHASE 3 KEY
Option 3A - MUGA
2 X Multi-use Games Areas
Footpaths upgraded
New footpaths
Vehicle route
Footbridge
BMX

Stream

Page 127

Garden
Score
Box

Sports Club

Bowls Green

Car Park
Car Park
Car Park
DP

Car Park
Upper Farm

Car Park

Factory Lane

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.4 - PHASE 4 – Boxing Facility
PHASE 4 KEY
Option 4A - Boxing Club
Refurbish the existing building
and reclad the external façade.
Improve the condition of ‘green
space A’ to the front of the club
Option 4B - Boxing Club
Demolish the existing boxing
club and build a new facility with
an appropriate amount of
external space. This will provide
shelter and an opportunity to
extend the internal activity to an
outside space. Improve the
condition of ‘green space A’ to
the front of the club

BMX

Page 128

Garden
Score
Box

Sports Club

Footpaths upgraded
New footpaths
Vehicle route
Footbridge

Green
space
A

Bowls Green

Stream

Car Park
Car Park
Car Park
DP

Car Park
Upper Farm

Car Park

Factory Lane

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.5 - PHASE 5 – Bowls Facilities
PHASE 5 KEY
Option 5A - Bowls Facilities
Demolish the existing shelter /
cabin and provide a new bowls
facility. Refurbish the existing
seating surrounding the bowls
green

BMX

Footpaths upgraded
New footpaths

Page 129

Garden
Score
Box

Vehicle route

Sports Club

Footbridge

Bowls

Stream

Green
space
A

Bowls Green

Car Park
Car Park
Car Park
DP

Car Park
Upper Farm

Car Park

Factory Lane

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

1.0 Sports Club
1.6 - PHASE 6 – Sports Pavilion
PHASE 6 KEY
Option 6A
New Sports Pavilion delivered over
2 stages
Sports Pavilion – Stage 1
Demolish the existing sports club
and replace with the first part of a
new 2 storey Sports Pavilion.
Existing scoring box / changing
rooms retained for use during
development of the pavilion.

BMX

Page 130

Sports Pavilion – Stage 2
Demolish the existing scoring box /
changing rooms. Build the
remainder part of the 2 storey
sports pavilion.

Garden
New Pavilion
Stage 1

Pavilion Areas – 2 storeys (GIA)

New Pavilion
Stage 2

Bowls

Stage 1 – 400 Sqm/floor – 800 Sqm
Stage 2 – 450 Sqm/floor – 900Sqm
Total Area – 1,700 Sqm
Green
space
A

Bowls Green

Footpaths upgraded
Car Park

New footpaths

Car Park

Vehicle route

Car Park

Footbridge

DP

Car Park

Stream
Upper Farm

Car Park

Factory Lane

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Page 131

2.0
Reservoir Zone
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

2.0 Reservoir Zone
2.1 - PHASE 7 - Reservoir Facilities
RESERVOIR KEY
Option 7A - Picnic Points
Grassed area tidied and picnic tables
located in open areas overlooking the
reservoir
VP

Option 7B - Viewing Points
New benches positioned along the
upgraded footpath in areas where gaps in
the existing trees front the reservoir exist
Upgraded / new footpath along the
perimeter of the reservoir

Access Zone

Page 132

Option 7C - Water Sports Store
Storage container to house water sports
equipment. Access to be made from the
road structure of the new residential
development

Picnic Zone

VP

Reservoir overflow / culvert

Reservoir

Residential Development (THT)
Seeking Planning Approval
Penwortham Mill
Ref: 07/2020/01034/ORM

VP
VP

Indicative house / apartments location
Indicative site road

VP

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Page 133

3.0
Sports Fields Zone
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

3.0 Sports Fields Zone
3.1 - PHASE 8 – 3G Pitch Facility
SPORTS FIELDS KEY
Option 8 – 3G Pitch
New third generation synthetic pitch
located in the northern area of the existing
college sports fields. Pitch to be fully
floodlit for use during low light conditions.
Option 9 – Additional Football Pitches
Football pitches demarcated on the existing
fields to the north.
Additional
football
pitches

CP / S

Car parking and sports equipment store

Page 134

Existing footpaths upgraded to provide on
foot and vehicular access
New lighting to be installed under the
existing bridge link
Existing vehicular access road

CP / S

3G Pitch
106m X 76m

Existing College
Sports pavilion /
fields
Existing
Club

N
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Page 135

4.0
Financial Analysis
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
Summary

Page 136
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
Summary

Page 137
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Generation 3G Pitch

Description
Option 8 – 3G Pitch
New third generation synthetic pitch located in the northern
area of the existing college sports fields. Pitch to be fully
floodlit for use during low light conditions.

Page 138

Features
•
•
•

3G Pitch
External Floodlighting
Access Road

Funding
•
•
•
•

Funded by PWLB over 50 years
Revenue – circa £80,000 per year
Assumed £160,000 grant
Potential for Sports England funding

TOTAL Cost
Total Gap

£1.24m (includes finance costs)
£0

Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Generation 3G Pitch

Page 139
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Generation 3G Pitch

Page 140
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New MUGA

Description
Option 3A - MUGA
2 X Multi-use Games Areas
Features
•
•

2 x MUGA
Lighting

Page 141

Funding
•
•
•

Funded by PWLB over 50 years
Revenue – circa £25,000 per year
Potential for Sports England Funding

TOTAL Cost
Total Gap

£259,231 (includes finance costs)
£0

Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New 2 x MUGA

Page 142
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New 2 x MUGA

Page 143
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Sports Pavilion
Description
Sports Pavilion – Stage 1
Demolish the existing sports club and replace with the first
part of a new 2 storey Sports Pavilion. Existing scoring box /
changing rooms retained for use during development of the
pavilion.
Sports Pavilion – Stage 2
Demolish the existing scoring box / changing rooms. Build the
remainder part of the 2 storey sports pavilion.
Pavilion Areas – 2 storeys (GIA)

Page 144

Stage 1 & Stage 2 – ideal floor area 1,200m2
Masterplan - 1,700 Sqm
Most viable – 1,200 Sqm
Operations – to ne agreed with VC
Revenue for food and drink not included in these financial
appraisals
Funding
•
•
•
•

Funded by PWLB over 50 years
CIL - £1.5m from THT site
Potential for Sports England Funding
Recommendation to seek funding via bids

TOTAL Cost
Total Gap

£3.05m (includes finance costs)
£2.1m (Grant Funding and CIL)

NOTE – The above model does not allow for delivering phases
1 to 5.

Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Pavilion

Page 145
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
New Pavilion

Page 146
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
July 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

4.0 Financial Analysis
Revenue Inputs

Page 147
Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

Page 148

5.0
Planning Policies
Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 149
Key
G16 Biological Heritage Sites (Biodiversity and Ecological
networks to be protected, conserved or enhanced)

N

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 150
Key

N
G16 Local Nature Reserves

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 151
N

Key
G5 Areas of Separation

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 152
N

Key
G6 Central Park
D1 Residential Allocations (sites allocated for new housing)

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 153
N

Key
G7 Green Infrastructure (Development will only be permitted
where it is essential to enhance Green Infrastructure and/or
connected facility which will ensure greater public use access)

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 154
Key

N
G1 Green Belt

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.1 Environment

Page 155
Key

N
G16 Wildlife Corridors

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.2 Infrastructure (Transport)

Page 156
N

Key
A2 Cross Borough Link Road (development link road)

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Masterplan
South Ribble

5.0 Planning policies
5.3 Development

Page 157
Key
G3 Safeguarded Land (S1 – land required to serve development needs in the long term)

N

Vernon Carus Masterplan
June 2021

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble

Vernon Carus Master Plan
South Ribble
July 2021

Quayside House
Furnival Road
Sheffield
S4 7YA
0114 220 1400
info@continuum-dm.com

Page 158
1A Brewery Wharf
Brewery Place
Leeds
LS10 1NE

0113 219 1333
info@cunniffdesign.com

Architecture
Inspiring Built
Interior Design
Vernon Carus – Zones & Phases
Masterplanning
July 2021
Environments

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 159

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 167

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 179

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 185

This page is intentionally left blank

